Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner -

Katja S. Fox
Director

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.oh.gov

'STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

2020,

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544

1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

July 26, 2019

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing retroactive, sole source agreements with the vendors listed below for the
provision of substance use disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing,
and wraparound services for pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance
use disorders, have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or
at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the price limitation by $1,000,000 from $2,962,652
to $3,962,652 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30,

approval.100% Federal Funds

|7 W

effective retroactive to June 30 2019, upon Governor and Executive Council

Vendor Name

Vendor
Number

Location

Contract
Amount

Increase/
{Decrease)

Modified
Contract
Amount

G&C Approvai.

Families in
Transition

157730-
BOOM

Manchester

$1.498 414

$500,000

$1,998,414

0: 9/21/16 (tem #11,

'Vote 5-0)

A1l: 41917 (ltem
#5A, Vote 5-0)

A2: B/21/17 (Item #
20A, Vote 5-0)

A3: 6/20/18 (Late
Item #F, Vote 5-0)

Hope on Haven
Hill, Inc.

275119-
BOO1

Rochester

$1,484,238

$500,000

$1,964,238

O: 8/3/16 (Late item
#A, Vote 5-0)

A1: 4/19/17 (item
#5A, Vote 5-0)

AZ2: 6/21/17 (item
#20A, Vote 5-0)

A3: 7/2718 (Item #6,
Vote 5-0)

Total:

$2,962,652

$1,000,000

$3,962,652
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Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for
State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES .

SFY Account Class Title MGode | Budget | (Decresse) | Budget
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers | 45057500 $981,326 $0 $981,326
2018 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $981,326 $0 $981,326
219 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,000,000 . 80 $1,000,000
2020 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $0 | $1,000,000 | $1,000,000
Total: | $2,962,652 | $1,000,000 | - I$3,962,652
EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive to June 30, 2019 because there was a transition of the
contracts’ oversight from one Department bureau to another close to the point of expiration. The
resulted in a need to ensure the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services had the ability to review,
understand and clarify the use of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families funding internally
and with the vendors. - '

The original agreement is sole source because the Contractors has been identified as
being among few providers in the State that having the ability and capacity to provide substance
use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing their child(ren) to remain
in the mother's care.

The purpose of this request is to continue the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant
and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at or
below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.
The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use
disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment.

Approximately thirty (30) families will be served by Hope on Haven Hill and fifty (50)
families will be served by Families in Transition, statewide, from July 1, 2019 through June 30,
2019. During SFY 2019, Hope on Haven Hill served fifty-five (65) families and Families in -
Transition served 257 family members. Services provided by both agencies included daycare,
housing assistance and supports, group/family/individual counseling, and employment supports.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women who need housing and have
. substance use disorders may not be found eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing services.
Additionaily, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to concern that seeking help for a substance use disorder could
result in separation from their children.

L4
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The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so
they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work and education. The
vendor will address needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the
children in residence. The program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the
purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The
Contractor is providing services that assist families to reduce and remove barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The
services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate dependence on public assistance,
and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while addressing clients’ substance use
disorders.

The Contractor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. Al
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’'s care. Services may include,
but are'not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

e Anger management classes

¢ Coping skills

¢ Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

e Lactation services

e Therapeutic play

e Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers may not receive the substance use disorder treatment services they need,
and they may not be able to locate housing for themselves and their children.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 18NHTANF
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In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

N, Py

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 4" Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and Families in Transition (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street
Manchester, NH 03101,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 21, 2016 (Item #11), as amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A); June 21, 2017 (Item
#20A), and June 20, 2018 (Item # 21), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,998,414.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety a&d replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #4,
Scope of Services. ’

6. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B — Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Exhibit B-1 — Amendment #4, SFY20 Budget.

Families in Transition Amendment #4 Contractor Initials ne-b
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be retroactively effective to June 30, 2019, upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

ez |19 i
Date / ' Katja S. Fox '
Director

Families in Transition

July 22, 2019
Date N‘ame: Maureen Beauregard
Title:  president
Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:
State of New Hampshire . County of Hillsborough on July 22,2019 . before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacjty indicated above.

ignature Of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

N

S

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

NANCY DESHARNAIS, Notary Publio
My Commission Expires August 3, 2021

Families in Transition Amendment #4
$5-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-03 Page 2 of 3 '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

o oo, /] —

Date ?i:ag:ey' g% Z %n K/ P

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

‘Date Name:
Title:
Families in Transition Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
" OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the
Federally mandated purposes of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may include:

1.21. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods,
personal care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual
family unless the parent is employed in which case services can be
extended;

1.2.3.  Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case

management, peer support, job retention and job advancement,
including training and education, and other employment-related
services that do not provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance, subject to Department approval which may include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.41. Dental services.
1.2.4.2.  Auto registration.
1.2.43. Personal care.
1.2.4.4. Books and tuition.

The Contractor shall provide ASAM level 2.7 and lower Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) treatment, supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible
pregnant and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep a record of how many individuals are screened, how
many are determined eligible, and how many are served, as specified in Section
1.3.

Familles in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor IniﬂalM
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services or increase services that are
currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services currently
available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with the Department to review/assist
with program processes, service provision, and overall program outcomes.
Contractor shall work in collaboration with the Department to ensure desired
program benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws and
regulations which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using
individuals served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department’s approval prior to initiating
any research involving the subjects or participants related to this
contract. The Department reserves the right, at its sole dlscretlon to
reject any such human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents and sentinel events which
include, but are not limited to reporting:

1.8.1. All critical incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor
agrees that: :

1.9.1.1. "Critical incident” means any actual or alleged event or

- situation that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious
harm to physical or mental health, safety, or well- being,
including but not limited to:

1.9.1.1.1. Abuse;

1.9.1.1.2. Neglect,;

1.9.1.1.3. Exploitation;
1.9.1.1.4. Rights violation;
1.9.1.1.5. Missing person;
1.9.1.1.6. Medical emergency;,
1.9.1.1.7. Restraint; or
1.9.1.1.8. Medical error.

1.9.2. All contact with law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon
as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.9.3. All Media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no later than 24 hours following the incident;

1.94. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

1.9.4.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any
individual who is receiving services under this contract;

1.9.4.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the Department,
which shall include:

1.9.4.21. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

1.9.4.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the individual(s)
involved in the event;

1.9.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

1.9.4.2.4. Description of the event, including what, when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant
information, as well as the identification of any other
individuals involved;

19.4.25. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

1.9.4.26. The identification of any media that had reported the
event.

1.9.4.3.  Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall
submit a completed “Sentinel Event Reporting Form”
(February 2017), available at
https:/iwww.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reporting-
form.pdf to the Department.

1.9.4.4. Additional information on the event that is discovered after
filing the form in Section1.9.4.3. above shall be reported to the
Department, in writing, as it becomes available or upon
request of the Department; and

1.9.4.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 1.9.4.1
through 1.9.4.4 above if required by the department; and

1.8.4.6. Report the event in Sections 1.9.4.1 through 1.9.4.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System (WITS) or an
alternative electronic health record approved by the Department to record all
client activity and client contact within three (3) days following the activity or
contact as directed by the Department. The Contractor shall:

Familles in Transition Exhibit A = Amendment #4 Contractor Initials m&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A— Amendment #4

1.10.1.  Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening.
1.10.1.2. Fee determination.
1.10.1.3. Admission.
1.10.1.4. Billing.
1.10.1.5. Disenroliment.
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data.

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific
treatment goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

1.11. The Contractor shall, obtain written consent from the client utilizing the consent
form as provided by Department prior to providing services. The Contractor
shall ensure:

1.11.1.  Any client refusing to sign the informed consent form is not:
1.11.1.1. Entered into the WITS (or approved alternative) system.
1.11.1.2. Provided services under this contract.

1.11.2.  Any client refusing to sign the consent form is assisted with finding
alternative payers for necessary services.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
have access to services that include, but are not limited to:

21.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

21.2. Qutpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as
available.

213. QOutpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.
214, Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- andfor off-site age developmentally appropriate
childcare.

216 Transportation services to and from non-medical services.
21.7. Wraparound services.
2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials _@
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A — Amendment #4

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to
end their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting
women’s ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting
women’s substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served which may include, but are not limited
to:

2.41. Street outreach programs.

242. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

245, Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and

residential services for pregnant and parenting women and their
children distributed to the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.45.3. Social service agencies.

2.454. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models
and/or best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to
monitor case management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

251, Initial intakes.

252 Clinical evaluations to determine the client’s Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DSM-5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial
evaiuation completed in accordance with Technical Assistance
Publication {TAP) 21: Addiction Counseling Competencies, available
at  http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-Counseling-
Competencies/SMA15-4171.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. This may include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD)
residential treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 826.

Families in Transiticn Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Inllialsm&_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A— Amendment #4

262

2.6.3.

Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up
to four (4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite
substance use disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may
include, but is not limited to, apartments within an apartment complex,
group housing, or shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing
services shall be limited to 4 months based off the TANF regulations
around non-assistance categories.

Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization
Services that allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving
scheduled onsite SUD treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first
24 hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services
and after being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1.
2.7.2.
2.7.3.
2.74.
2.7.5.

Housing.

Food.

Clothing.

Diapers.

Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment
services, as appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.8.1.

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

2.8.4.

Families in Transition

$8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-03

Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of
Sudden Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant
Death Syndrome (SIDS).

Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used
to promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the
American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or
sleeping. For detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4 1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.f
ull.pdf .

Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be
licensed but should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to
developmentally appropriate childcare.

Supports for before and after schoo! care are available for school age

children.
Exhibit A — Amandment #4 Contractor Initizls ! m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A -~ Amendment #4

2.9.

2.8.5.

Arrangements are in place that allow children to continue attending
school.

The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

291,

2.9.2.

2.9.3.

294,

2.95.

Families in Transition

$5-2017-DFA-02-Opend-03 Page 7 of 14 Date

Contact the Doorway in the client's area to connect the client with
SUD treatment services.

Assist the client with accessing services by:
2.9.2.1. Identifying alternate providers.

2.9.2.2. Actively reaching out to alternate providers on behalf of the
client.
Provide or refer to interim services until the appropniate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative
provider. These services shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.3.1. Atleast one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
' provided or offered per week;

2.9.3.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client,

2.9.3.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on
the fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.3.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess
and respond.

Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC),
and Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

29.4.1. The risks of needle sharing.
2.9.4.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants,

2.9.4.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2944 Referral to HiV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.
29.45. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

Establish and maintain a waiting list that monitors the wait time for
clients to receive services, from the date of initial contact to the date
clients first receive services, other than screening and assessment.
The Contractor shall ensure the waiting list includes but is not limited
to:

2.9.5.1. A unique patient identifier;
2.9.5.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment;

Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A — Amendment #4

2.9.5.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services;

2.9.54. Referrals made for treatment or interim services; and

2.9.5.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.9.6.

Provide a monthly report to the Department, indicating the average
wait time for all clients, by type of service and payer source.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco education and treatment to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1.
2.10.2.

2.10.3.

Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department’'s Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program {TPCP) and the certified tobacco
cessation counselors available through the QuitLine; and

Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shali develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all
clients based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013)

domains.

2111,

2.11.2.

2.11.3.

2114

The Contractor shall:

Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent.

Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written
in terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SUD)
records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider,
that safeguards, including consent and notices required by 42 CFR
Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2121,
2122

2.12.3.

Familias in Transition

§8-2017-DF A-02-Opend-03

A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not
limited to, linking women with community services within the area in
which she will be permanently housed after receiving treatment
services.

Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children
have access to the treatment plan-specific services.

Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initlals m&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are
not limited to:

2.12.41. Assistance with enrolilment in Medicaid or other private
insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.45. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP
27: Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-
for-Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://vww.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but
are not limited to:

2.13.1.  Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling.

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers
working within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Nonclinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling
services for clients and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this contract, which shall include medical and behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice in accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health
Facilty Rules, Part He-P 826 Rules for Residential Treatment and
Rehabilitation. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited
to:

2.14.1. A minimum of one licensed supervisor, defined as:

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials I n ﬁ '
§8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-03 Page 9 of 14 Date YUY 22, 2019
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2.14.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC); or

2.14.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holds
eth Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

2.14.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

2.14.2.  Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided
and the number of clients served including, but not limited to:

214.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCs, LADCs and
individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice of
Board of Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any
clinical or recovery support services within their scope of
practice.

2.14.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have
completed the required coursework for licensure by the Board
of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental
Health Practice of Board, or Psychology and are working to
accumulate the work experience required for licensure.
Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowledge provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.3. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) who may
deliver intensive case management and other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certification as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowledge provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.3. Ensuring no licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve
(12) staff, in accordance with evidence-based practices.

2.14.4.  Providing ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals
in accordance with evidence based practices, at a minimum:

2.14.4.1. Woeekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources of
therapeutic  approaches, co-therapy, and periodic
assessment of progress.

2.14.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision.

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials ‘ Hé
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2.145. One (1) halftime advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP)
through staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Public Health Epidemiologist in order to
collect data, complete surveillance, and complete evaluation of social
determinants of health and other public health and community health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB &
STDs. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff;, or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served and ensure the Safety of
clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of seif-harm at all phases of treatment as
well as at discharge based on policies and processes approved by
the Department within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures' within 3 months of the
contract effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy
and procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.4. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their
children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster
situations through continuous staff development that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.
2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.
2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

2.18. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for
any eligible services.

2.18.2. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from
sources the contractor may identify.

2.18.3. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has
in place for the population at need.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure Individua! Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for
all program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor
shall ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or
community partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and emplo‘yment training/ support.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective
actjon plan described in Section 6.1, as monitored by the Department, until such
time the Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing
services in the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the number of individuals
screened, determined eligible, and served as provided in Section 1.4.

3.3. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents, as provided in Section 1.9, as
soon as possible and no later than 24 hours following the incident.

Familles in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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3.4. The Contractor shall report on sentinel events, as specified in Section 1.9, no
later than 72 hours of the event occurring.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on their efforts to conduct third-
party billing for any eligible services and seek alternate sources of funding for
non-billable services, as provided in Sections 2.18.1 and 2.18.2.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no
later than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 85% of the individuals on the waiting list described
in Section 2.9.5 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per
week.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled in program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate levet of care.

4.4, The Contractor shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite
employment programming to increase in financial stability and reduce
dependence of public assistance.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
(3) receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of
the services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of fifty (50)
families in the Manchester, NH region. :

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to
the Department for approval no later than sixty {60) days from the contract
effective date. ‘

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from
the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections 2.8.2 and
2.17.1 to the Department no later than sixty (60) days from the contract effective
date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9.5
and 2.9.6 to the Department once every two (2) months.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section
2.17.3 to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in
trainings described in Section 2.17.5 to the Department no later than sixty (60)
days after the contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.18.1
to the Department for review and approval no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract effective date.

6. Contract Compliance

6.1. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty {30) days from the date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.1.1. The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified
by the Department.

6.1.2. The specific action{(s) to be taken to prevent any future
reoccurrence(s) of each deficiency.

6.1.3. The specific action steps and time line for implementing the actions
identified in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above.

6.1.4. A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions identified
in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above are effective.

6.1.5. The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation
and effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

Families in Transition Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials ,M
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
in accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalog of Federal and
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Program, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 18NHTANF.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.  The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10™} working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month.

3.2. The Contractor shall have documentation available upcon request covering the same
period as the invoice in Section 3.1 that identifies all payments made on behalf of each
client, including the purpose for each payment, the payee for each payment, and any
appropriate backup documentation.

3.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.4. The invoice shall be submitted by mail through the US Postal Services or email to:

Director
Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
Email: Annette.escalante@dhhs.nh.gov
4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days from the Form
P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7,

5. Any request to adjust a prior invoice must be accompanied by supporting documentation and
is subject to Department approval.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

8. Non Reimbursement for Services

Famllies in Transition. Exhibit B - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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8.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client is or may be eligible for an alternative payer for services described in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work including, but not limited to:

8.1.1.  Services covered by any New Mampshire Medicaid programs for clients who
are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid.

8.1.2.  Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare.
8.1.3.  Services covered by a client’s private insurer(s).

8.2. Notwithstanding Section 8.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that is not
covered by the payers listed in Section 8.1.

9. The Contractor shall;

9.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided under this
contract from public and private insurance plans, the clients, and the Department.

9.2, Utilize a billing and payment system that enables expedited processing to the greatest
degree possible in order to not delay a client's admittance into the program and to
immediately refund any overpayments.

9.3. Maintain accurate accounting and records for all services billed, payments received
and overpayments refunded.

10. Submitting Charges for Payment
10.1. The Contractor shall:

10.1.1. Review the invoice and associated backup documentation no later than twenty
(20) days following the last day of the billing month and submit the invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.1.2. Correct any errors in the invoice and documentation no later than seven (7)
days after being notified of the errors, and submit the corrected invoice and
documentation to the Depariment for review.

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review sixty (60) days after the last day
of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

11. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

12. The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to Department funded
programs and services.

Families in Transition. Exhibil B — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials M
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secrciary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994. [ further certify that all fees
and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concemed.

Business 1D: 207982
Certificate Number: 0004506562

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

| hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 29th day of April A.D. 2019,

Do ok

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTERED TRADE NAME
OF
FAMILIES IN TRANSITION

This is to certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is registered in this office as doing business under the Trade Name FAMILIES IN
TRANSITION, at 122 Market Street , Manchester, NH, 03101, USA or 1/2/2018 10:46:00 AM.

The nature of business is Other / Hunger relief, emergency shelter, safe affordable housing and supportive services

Expiration Date: 1/2/2023 10:46:00 AM

Business ID: 785244

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

thi§ 2nd day of January A.D. 2018.

Gon Lo

Williamm M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Filed
Date Filed : 01/02/2018 10:46:00 AM
Effective Date : 01/02/2018 10:46:00 AM

51&12 Uf NB&] %ampghire ﬁl’n;;nﬁixg)nn:;ﬁl

William M. Gardner
- . Secreiary of State
Filing fee: $50.00 ' Stte of New Hampshire
UUse black print or lype. Ron oW
APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF TRADE NAME
(PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY)
1. Business name:; Families in Transition .
. {Name cann clude "INC." or other corporate designation)
2. Business address: 122 Market Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03101
No. & Siraet : City / town State Zip
Mailing address (if different):
No. & Street City 7 lown Stale Zip

3. Brief description of kind of business to be carried on (and if known, list the NAICS Code and Sub-
Code): Hunger relief, amergency shelter, safe affordable housing and supportive services.

4. Date business organized: January 1, 2018

5-.A. BUSINESS APPLICANT: If the applicant is a corporation or other entity, list corporation’s or entity’s
exact name and include title of person signing. If more space is needed for additional entity
applicants, please attach additional sheet(s).

FIT/NHNH, INC. 122 Market Street
Entity name {lype or print) MNo. Street
Manchester, NH 03101
AUTHO! )D SIGNATUR| Town/Clty State Zip
. ~
\ A 5

Signacs nd title ftype or prin C
e A eeprs Bod Clei '
5-8. INDIVIDUAL AEEL[CANTS: Please type or print applicants’ name(s), address(es) and include

signature. If mare space [s needed for additional individual applicants, pleass attach additional

sheet(s).
1.
Type of prinl name No. Street
SIGNATURE Town/City State Zip
2. .
Type or print name No. Streal
SIGNATURE TowniCity State Zip

Business E-Mail:
Business Phone:

Please check if you would prefer to receive the Reminder Notice by emalil.

DISCLAIMER: All documents fited with the Corporation Division become public records and will be available for
public inspection in either tangible or electronic form. :

Malling Address - Corporation Division, NH Dept. of Stato, 107 N Main St, Rm 204, Concord, NH 03301-4889
Physical Location - State Houss Annex, 3rd Floor, Rm 317, 25 Capitol St, Concord, NH

Foam TN-1 Pg 1 (8/2015)

- B .




7/23/2019 QuickStart

{/online/Home Back to Home {/online)

Business Information
Business Details
Business Name: FAMIUES IN TRANSITION Business ID: 785244
Business Type: Trade Name Business Status: Active
Expiration Date: 1/2/2023 Last Renewa! Date: Not Available
N in State of
Business Creation Date: 01/02/2018 ame in '.a ° Not Available
Formation:
Date of Formation in Jurisdiction: 01/02/2018
Principal Office Address: 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH, 03101, Mailing Address: 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH, 03101,
USA USA
Business Email: NONE " Phone #: NONE
Notification Email: NONE Fiscal Year End Date; NONE
Principal Purpose
S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

OTHER / Hunger relief, emergehcy shelter, safe affordable housing
and supportive services

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

hitps://quickstart.ses.nh.govionline/Businessinguire/Businessinformation7businesslD=611288



712312018 QuickStart

Trade Name Information

Business Name Business ID ' Business Status

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address
FIT/NHNH, INC ‘ Good Standing
{/online/BusinessInquire/TradeNamelnformation? _ Business

businessiD=57015)

- Trademark Information

Trademark Number Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address

No records to view.

Filing History Address History View All Other Addresses Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search

NH Department of State, 107 North Main 5. Room 204, Concord, NH 03301 -- Contact Us (/online/Home/ContactUs)
Version 21 © 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Reserved.

htips Aiquickstart.sos.nh.govionline/Businessinquire/Businessinformation?businessiD=611288

Back



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Charla Stevens , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of FIT/NHNH, Inc.
{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on July 22, 2019
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _ 22 day of __July , 2019

(Date Contract Signed)
4. Maureen Beauregard is the duly elected President

(Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

(Signature%f the E]eE cted Officer)

1

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 22 day of _July , 20189

By Charla Stevens

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) @ ; / ZZ
%jy Public/Justie-of theReace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

SHERYL A. COOMBS
Nota;ry Pubfic - New Hampshire
My Cothslm Expires March 7, 2023



FAMIINT-01 DEEAUDOIN
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE " izv2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS I{SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificata holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBRQGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tarms and conditions of tha policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on
this cortificate does not confer rights to the certificate helder in lieuv of such endorsemant(s).

PRODUCER ACT
Dy T oed. T & Everet, Inc. (A b, Ex1y; (603) 225-6611 | 45, wey:(603) 225-7935
Concord, NH 03301 "
INSURER!S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
iv3ureR 4 : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B : Granite State Health Care & Human Services 3elf Insured Group
FIT/NHNH, Inc. INSURER C
122 Market St INSURER D ;
Manchester, NH 03101
(NSURERE :
(NSURER F :
COVYERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER.:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
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QOur Mission

The mission of FIT/NHNH is to provide hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing, and
supportive services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need, enabling them to gain self-
sufficiency and respect.
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H BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2018 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements,

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards- require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. S

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2018, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

-.._.a'. - Froa
Bangor, ME = Portland, ME » Manchester, NH & Glastonbury, CT » Charleston, WV e Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
FIT/NMNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2017 consclidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 30, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2018 the Organization adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Presentation of
Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958). Our opinion is not medified with respect to
this matter.

30%3 Duicnn McNel ¥ Prder, LLL

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 18, 2019



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018

{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

ASSETS

Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Funds held as fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves

Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity

Assel held for sale

Property and equipment, net
Development in process

Other assets, net

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held as fiscal agent
Due to related entity
Line of credit
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion, net of unamortized deferred costs
Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions - controlling interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2018 2017
$ 1,598,033 $ 1062497
- 96,383
52,211 38,380
786,343 451,664
80,007 33,229
35,613 -
48,110 43,097
2,600,317 1,725,250
336,578 292,264
718,154 722,130
1,336,584 -
1,000 1,000
429,779 -
28,530,819 26,210,337
3,605,450 2,090,031
198,473 50,000
$..31757,154 §__31091.012
$ 1,116,180 $ 216,147
249,907 220,828
348,095 217,676
- 96,383
35,613 -
145,000 -
82,475 49,504
1,977,270 800,538
13,604,017 11,264 521
15,581,287 12,065,059
17,744,537 14,563,053
3.243,694 3,565,478
20,988,231 18,128,531
1,187,636 897,422
22.175.867 19,025,953
$__ 37,757,154 $__ 31091012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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Fodersl, siaie and other grant support
Rental income, nat of vacancies
Thaift store sales

Publc supporn

Tax credit revenus

Special evenis

Daveloper ines

VISTA program revenue

Unreaiized (Joss) gain on investmants
{Loas) pain on dispossl of aasets
Intarest income

Net sasats released from resiriclions
Total revanus snd support

Towl epenses

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2018
{with Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

(Deficlency) axcass of revenus and sUppon over

apenses

Grants And CONtDWIONS. 107 CApial projects
Nel 83303 relensed for capital projects
Effact of consoldation of afMitate

Change in nel s3sals

subsidinrias

Changs In net ssses afer reciasaifcation of portion
attribuiable 10 noncontroling interasl

Nol assats, baginning of yesr
Nat assets, and of yea:

Change in net asaets attributabie (o noncontroling Interes! n

Wihout Denor Without Doner
Rashictions . by - Tow
c w0 9 Without Donor With Donor Total Total
Itere s foteresl Bestrictions Bextrictiony ol [l
H 4,601,300 I 45601300 3 513854 § 5115154 3§ 3212747
2021485 . 2,021,485 . 2,021,443 1,841,084
819,585 - 819,585 - 410,588 535,758
855,430 - 855,830 - 255,030 439.127
80,000 - 50,000 - 80, 180,000
526,910 - $2.810 - 528,910 w71
88,463 - 48,483 - .48 -
9,734 - 92,734 - 93,734 125,742
{188,848} - {188,848} - {188,048) 1210
{10,115) - {1015 - {10,115} 5113
38,634 - X - 30604 3510
14420 - 14,429 - 144N 51,548
90,783 . 9783 - ", .
131,287 - 131,287 - 131,167 131.287
521,057 - 521,957 . 521,987 411,535
270420 - e A0 - 279,420 91,958
10,043,719 - 0,043,719 220929 10,284 642 7,313,857
8,300,024 - 8.300.928 - 3,190,826 8,269,553
il : 595,374 : 888,974 £31.281
9,077,300 - 9,077,300 - 9,077,300 8930844
1,131,841 - 1,131,841 . 1,331,041 413,408
897,254 - 897,234 - 897,234 538,803
11,108,475 - 11,108 475 - 11,106,475 1939133
1,062,758} - {1.082.758) 20829 {841,827 ®23,218)
270,857 - 270,057 289,033 540,790 1.538.770
35¢.812 - 350,812 (350.012) - .
3,281,787 - 3,291,787 130,584 1,430,951 =
2.850.700 - 2,450,700 200,214 3,148,914 V15,404
321794 321780 - . : :
3,181,454 {321.784) 2,850,700 290,214 3,140,914 915,454
14,563 083 2.085478 10,128,531 267,433 19,025,953 ___ 18,110,439
] ATTa4537 3 2243804 3 20 ma; 3 11876838 % S31I5887 3, 16,025,933
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2018

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Tota! salaries and
henefits

Other expenses

Advertising

Applicaticn and permit fees
Bad debts

Bank charges
Consultants
Depreciation

Events

General insurance
Grant expense

Interest expense
Management fees
Meals and entertainment
Membership dues
Merger expenses
Office supplies
Participant expensas
Postage

Printing

Professional fees
Related entity expense
Rental subsidies
Repairs and maintenance
Shelter expense

Staff development
Taxes

Technology support
Telephone

Travel

Utilities

VISTA program
Workers' compensation

Total expenses

Program Activities

Management 2018 2017

Housing Thrift Store  Fundraising and General Total Total
$ 3492775 % 316195 $ 518402 § 355442 § 4,682,814 § 3,168,366
400,781 24 951 54,002 37,770 517,504 349,575
262.810 24,440 39,746 26,593 353,589 234,204
4,156,366 365,586 612,150 419,805 5,553,907 3,752,145
15,018 25,068 - 18,946 59,032 36,236
1,620 - - - 1,620 2,015
28,100 - - - 28,100 26,124
573 8.847 - 11,445 20,865 17,875
19,504 2,847 4,647 2,483 29,481 78,138
933,878 11,093 115,347 51,612 1,111,930 1,003,204
3,550 2,814 160,685 - 167,049 61,181
124,791 3,523 14,318 13,248 155,880 153,904
59,149 - - - 59,149 -
228,999 714 - - 229,713 188,473
6,622 - - - 6,622 6,487
4,740 179 656 547 6,122 5,181
10,790 - 1,741 3,458 15,989 10,022
- - - 137,747 137,747 1,000
282,398 6,460 43,158 38,139 370,165 134,490
116,915 45 379 379 117,718 99,219
7,324 9 4274 1,758 13,365 7,804
16,755 2,745 19,129 2,088 40,717 24 577
53,906 3,500 - 112,417 169,823 182,974
(158,398) 159,398 - - - -
332,270 - - - 332,270 298,272
370,123 34,325 42145 16,168 462,762 409,132
166,891 - - - 166,891 -
31,588 98 4,008 3,340 39,034 23,136
313,613 2,307 - - 315,920 328,184
190,132 2,231 28,782 23,666 244 811 65,457
88,992 5,056 10,095 8,778 112,921 90,917
40,914 3,845 5,191 4,222 54,172 44,486
512,260 31,461 52,007 17,767 613,495 444 062
320,859 - - - 320,859 359,804
111,684 14,223 13,229 9,220 148,356 84544
$_8390926 $__686374 $_1131941 $__897.234 $11.106475 $_7.939133

-5.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2018
{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2017)

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 3149914 3§ 915,494
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 1,125,127 1,016,491
Grants and contributions for capital projects (560,790) (1,538,770}
Effect of consolidation of affiliate, net of cash held by consolidated affiliate
of $326,551 (3,104,400) -
Forgiveness of debt (131,267} (131,267)
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments 168,848 (1,270)
Loss {gain) on disposal of assets 10,116 (5,133)
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable 42,130 (16,731)
Grants and contributions receivable (334,679) {128,248)
Prepald expenses (39,301) 2,609
Other assets (119,810) {302)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (21,258) 51,841
Accrued expenses 84,806 0,744
Due to related party 35,613 -
Other current liabilities 32,971 1,398
Net cash provided by operating activities 338,019 175,856
Cash Rows from investing activities
Repayments of advances to retated parties (35,613) 8,208
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from reserve accounts (40,338) 57,348
Proceeds from sale of investments 275,024 4,264
Investment in development in process (1,515,419) (1,931,040}
Proceeds from disposal of assets - 5,133
Acquisition of property and equipment (2,476,109} (162.691)
Net cash used by investing activities {3,792 455) {2.018.779)
Cash ftows from financing activities
Grants and contributions for capital projects 660,790 1,538,770
Net borrowings from line of credit 145,000 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 3,507,201 772,009
Payments on long-term debt {223.019) (203.120)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,989,972 2,107 659
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 535,536 264,737
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,062,497 797,760
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $__15988033 $___ 1062497
Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings from seller $ - S 60,615
Property and equipment transferred from development in process S 222138 S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



FIT/NHNH, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT or the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization, Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Street, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard | and Millyard
i), Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing
facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), and Lehner Street in Wolfeboro,
New Hampshire (Hope House).

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH}), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Ouffitters), a limited liability corporation.
At December 31, 2018, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close the Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

The QOrganization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Bicentennial Families Concord,
Inc. (Bicentennial Families), Second Street Family Mill, Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big
Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of which are New Hampshire
corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole general partners in the Limited
Partnerships, whereby Bicentennial Families is a general partner of Bicentennial, Family Mill is a
general partner of Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to “eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy”.




FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Effective January 1, 2018, FIT and New Horizons for New Hampshire, Inc. (NHNH) merged to create
an integrated system of care that will provide an increased supply of affordable housing for those most
in need, sustain positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence based practices proven to
meet identified needs and goals, identify areas for systemic and programmatic improvements through
the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure success, and provide an integrated
system of care that will prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become
homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with children. The merger resulted in a
contribution of net assets of $3,430,951 as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551
Other current assets 63,438
Cash surrender value of life insurance 33,676
Investments 1,780,456
Property and equipment, net 1,396,197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (95,950)
Notes payable {73.417)
Fair value of net assets acquired $_3,430.951

The merger resulted in a contribution because the fair value of the identifiable assets exceeds the fair
value of the liabilities assumed and no consideration was transferred from NHNH.

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association) and is the majority owner in the Association. The Association was established for the
purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit premise located on Wilson Street in Manchester,
New Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation,
the financial statements of each of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated with
the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits, MEH, OQutfitters, the Association, and
NHCEH. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.




FIT/INHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have heen prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors. '

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases those net asset
classes. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support withaut donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.




FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at.a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Restricted deposits are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for
operating costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for
rental properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated. : :

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
approximately $780,000 and $1,060,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation, amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
estimated utilization of support services by functional cost centers.

-10-



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)}(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reftected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority, The
Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to
examination by the federal government for up to three years.

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes, however, the Internal Revenue Service is
prepared to regard any profits realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions
of members' contributions towards the operation of the condaminium property and not as taxable
income of the Association or its members, Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been
made in these consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2016, Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Notifor-Profit Entities (Topic 958),
which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The new ASU marks
the completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for profit financial
reporting. Under the new ASU, net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The previous three
category classification of net assets is replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions.” The guidance for classifying deficiencies in endowment funds and on accounting for
the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property, plant, and equipment has also been
simplified and clarified. New disclosures highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make
otherwise liquid assets unavailable for meeting near-term financial requirements. The ASU also
imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses. The ASU is effective for the
QOrganization for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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FIT/INHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
{(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Availability and Liguidity of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2018, the Organization has working capital of $1,108,040 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 54.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on mortgage notes payable, and capital
acquisitions not funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2018 2017
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,598,033 $ 1,062,497
Accounts receivable 52,211 38,380
Grants and contributions receivable 786,343 451,664
Investments 1,.336.584 -
Total financial assets 3,773,171 1,552,541
Doncr-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds {1,187.636) {897 422)
Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 2686536 $___655119

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs.

The Organization has reptacement reserves and cash designated reserves for properties as part

of its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) and only available ,
when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash designated reserves

for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next year and are not

reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a balanced budget

while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2018 2017
Land $ 3,646,597 $ 3,112,699
Land improvements 602,600 602,600
Buildings and improvements 34,123,495 30,283,393
Furniture and fixtures 731,590 610,143
Equipment 658,032 217,695
Vehicles 347,711 300,367
Construction in progress 12,229 -

40,022,254 35,126,897

Less: accumulated depreciation 11,491,435 8,916,560
Property and equipment, net $_28530819 $__ 26210337

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization held $22,102,918 and $18,427,778,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvements, net of accumulated
depreciation, for the purpose of leasing to individuals.

Development in Process

Development in process consists of costs related to the following facilities:

Family Willows Recovery Housing Program

In response to the rising rates of opioid and other substance use issues throughout Manchester,
New Hampshire and the State of New Hampshire, FIT and Housing Benefits are assisting in the
establishment of The Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center, a large-scale facility to curb
the tide of substance misuse.

The plan for establishment of this facility includes the following provisions: Each of the four floors
of the Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center will provide different substance use disorder
treatments or services to those at varying stages of recovery. Agencies using the facility will
coordinate services to ensure that clients who seek services are provided with integrated and
comprehensive care. One of the key programs in the facility will be Housing Benefit's Family
Willows Recovery Housing Program (the Project) on the 2" and 3™ floors. This program will
provide 19 units of sober, recovery housing, and can accommodated an estimated 40-50 women
and their children on an annual basis. Residents in the Project will have access to case
management, continued outpatient treatment, self-help groups, employment workshops, and
social events. Construction began in December 2017 and is anticipated to be completed in the first
quarter of 2019. Funding for the Project has been secured from the City of Manchester, NHHFA,
Franklin Savings Bank, the Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and private
foundations.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017}

Hope House

In December 2017, FIT and Housing Benefits began renovations on Hope House. Hope House,
modeled after FIT's Family Place Resource Center and Shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire, is
a comprehensive resource for families experiencing homelessness. In addition to emergency
housing, Hope House provides services including comprehensive intake, assessment and referrals
designed to direct families to the appropriate homeless and housing resources in the community,
referrals to medical care for parents and children, and other essential resources. Hope House
houses 7 families and their children each night, with an estimated 30 adults and 90 children
annually. During 2018, the renovations at Hope House were completed and facility was placed into
service. Funding for Hope House was obtained with lending from NHHFA, as well as private
contributions,

Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $350,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4% (5.5% at December 31, 2018). There was no outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding balance was $145,000.

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

N
-
[--3
N
—
~l

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 63,707 $ 57,243

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042, 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $990, including interest at 4.55%. The loan is collateralized
by real estate on Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire
and is due and payable in full in February 2019. The
QOrganization is in the process of refinancing this mortgage loan
payable. 113,186 118,282
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A mortgage loan payable to TD Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 59,226 69,980

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024, 217,397 226,616

A mortgage note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA, collateralized
by real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1, 2034. 141,664 147,919

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2034. This is nonrecourse. 85,018 85,018

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is nonrecourse ,
and is subordinate 'to the $85,018 note payable. 336,955 336,955

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to Merrimack
County, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. The note is due and payable in full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard 1l to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the property or in
May 2031. This loan is nonrecourse. 449,877 449 877

A mortgage note payable by Millyard Il to NHHFA, collateralized by
real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of $1,729
include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The final
installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 220,274 233,053
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FIT/INHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A note payable by Millyard 1 to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. A payment of interest shall be made annually no
later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of the net cash
flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt Coverage Ratio,
as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal payments shall be
made no later than August 1 in an amount that will result in a
1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid amounts are due
and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This note is
nonrecourse. 226,725 226,725

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard |l to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by real estate. Payment of principal is due and payable on
December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. _ 250,000 250,000

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families | real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families | real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022, < 45,430 57,837

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30, 2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A,,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill. 432,921 450,124

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash filow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037.

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse.

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and interest at 3.75%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree.

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,775 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021.

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039.

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040.

A privately-financed mortgage note collateralized by property
located at South Main Street in Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principal and interest at
6.25% per annum. The note is payable in full in September
2031.

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full in August 2040.

543,384

90,908

263,103

69,2856

617,613

413,576

332,432

34,628

550,878

99,999

275,398

95,775

617,613

413,575

348,981

34,628

-17 -



FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

second, noninterest bearing, morigage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041.

noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2018 and 2017, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities.

mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028,

noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 383-395 Spruce Street. As costs are
incurred Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2015. The note is due in full by
October 1, 2045,

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real

estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $1,921 include principal and interest at 3.41%. The note is
due in full by April 2019. The Organization is in the process of
refinancing this mortgage loan payable.

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including

interest at 4.06%. The loan is due in September 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle.

168,022

984,497

216,672

582,808

388,731

9,892

168,022

1,115,764

216,672

582,808

398,203

15,239
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017}

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan is due in November 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle.

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045,

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 include principal and
interest at 4.25%. The note is due in full by January 2040.

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,270 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027,

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal and interest are due over a 30
year period starting September 2018 at 4.90% interest.

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments in amounts equal to 25% of
surplus cash. The note is due in full by November 1, 2047.

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.90% annual
interest rate. The loan is due and payable in March 2022.

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due in full by
October 1, 2047,

13,979

750,000

183,916

382,018

770,113

692,891

40,633

1,133,816

22,624

750,000

188,387

390,000

270,855

113,819

51,965
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

‘December 31, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)‘

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note is funded the the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019, The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047.

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The note is
due in full by December 1, 2047.

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at Angie's Shelter. If the
renovation project is approved, NHHFA is expected to be the
lead lender on renovations. If the renovation project is not
approved NHHFA will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest
bearing note payable is due at the time of closing on the
construction loan.

A noninterest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester
Community Improvement Program through the Affordable
Housing Trust Funds, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street. Annual payments of $6,000 are due by
October 1 commencing October 1, 2010. The note is due in full
by October 1, 2019,

A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2.0% will be
required until December 2021.

Less current portion
Less unamonrtized deferred costs

495,225

780,000

13,879

6,000

46,767

14,760,449

1,116,180
40,252

11,534,117

216,147
53,449

$ 13604017 $11.264521

———

——
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)
Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan

agreements.

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2019 $ 1,116,180
2020 218,543
2021 210,011
2022 186,655
2023 504,951
Thereafter 12,524,109

914,760,449

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,197, was
$229,713 and $188,473 in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Cash paid for interest approximates
interest expense.

Net Assets

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2018 2017
Specific purpose
The Family Flace - services $ 83,540 % -
Scholarships 8,264 10,264
VISTA program 48,118 57,351
Direct care for clients 95,410 109,748
Community Gardens 10,333 -
Hope House 131,440 241,761
Family Willows Recovery Housing
Program 264,238 299,797
NHNH merger 345,003 98,500
Substance use disorder services 170,677 -
NHNH programs 50,613 -
1,187,636 B17,422
Passage of time
Grant receivable - time restricted - 80.000

$__ 1187636 $___ 897,422
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FIT/NHNH, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2018 2017
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

The Family Place - services $ - $ 41,866
Scholarships 3,500 2,500
VISTA program 57,325 58,093
Housing programs - 10,000
Direct care for clients 84,324 45,070
Community Gardens - 42,843
Hope House 216,016 -
Family Willows Recovery Housing

Program 143,796 42 972
NHNH merger 96,706 -
Substance use disorder services 45,324 2,000
NHNH programs 5,746 -

$___ 652737 $___ 245344

Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships’' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $63,053 and $49,814 during the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Housing Action New Hampshire

In 2011, the Organization entered into a Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement with Housing Action New
Hampshire {HANH), an unincorporated association. Authority to manage the programmatic
activities of HANH is vested solely in HANH. In accordance with the agreement, the Organization
was to maintain the books and financial records for HANH in accordance with U.S. GAAP. HANH
funds were presented in the Organization's consolidated statement of financial position as funds
held as fiscal agent. Effective January 1, 2018, the Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement terminated and
the Organization no longer maintains the books and financial records for HANH.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2017)

11. Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Property 2018 207

New Hampshire Housing

Equity Fund, Inc. Bicentennial $ 105,749 $ 213,660
JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial 213,791 213,791
BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corparate Family Bridge 970,818 1,135,777
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 1,963,316 2.002.230

$__3.243694 $__ 3565478

12. Subseauent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 18, 2019,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

Bicentennial

During 2018, Bicentennial reached the end of the initial 15-year low-income housing tax credit
compliance period. As a result, New Hampshire Housing Equity Fund, Inc. and JP Morgan Chase
(the limited partners) have decided to withdraw from Bicentennial and are expected to do so in the
first quarter of 2019. It is management's plan to have Housing Benefits assume the remaining
assets of Bicentennial, !

Qutfitters

As a result of management's decision to close the OutFITter's Boutique located in Concord, New
Hampshire, the property was put up for sale and is reflected as an asset held for sale on the
consolidated statement of financial position at December 31, 2018. On February 25, 2019,
Qutfitters sold the property for $830,000. CDFA, who granted tax credits to originally purchase the
property, has required Outfitters to restrict $43,340 of the proceds from the sale to be used for the
Qutfitters thirft store located in Manchester, New Hampshire. Quftfitters will recognize a gain on
sale of property in 2019.
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Antoinette Hills

In September, 2018, Housing Benefits signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Antoinette L.
Hill Apartments, Inc., an unrelated party, to purchase 23 units of housing located in Manchester,
New Hampshire for approximately $1,300,000 to be financed through NHHFA. The terms of the
long-term debt agreement with NHHFA require that the owner of the property must be a single

purpose entity. As a result, management has formed HB-AH, LLC, is a single member LLC, with
Housing Benefits as its sole member.
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Families'in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire
Board of Directors

Board of Directors

David Cassidy, Co-Chairperson
Senior Vice President, Eastern Bonk
Board member since 2018

Charla Bizios Stevens, Co -Chairperson
Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group
McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire
Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone, Vice Chairperson
Sr. Director Empioyee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast
Board member since 2018

Robhert Bartley, Treasurer
President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor
Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Asst. Treasurer
Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.
Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary
First, Corporate and Foundation Relations
Board member since 2018

Roy Tilsley, At Large
Bernstein Shur, Shareholder
Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, At Large
COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner
Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, Prior Co-Chairperson
President, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson
Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration
Board member since 2018
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AnnMarie French
Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute
Board member since 2018

Brian Hansen
Team Engineering, Project Manager
Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol
Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner
Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfield
Vice President, Commercial Lending, People’s United Bank
Board member since 2018

Jack Olson
Retired
Board member since 2018

Kitten Stearns
Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich
Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations
Board member since 2018

Peter Telge
Owner, Stark Brewing Company
Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine
Executive Chairman, Ballentine Partners, LLC
Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs
Manchester School District Coordinator
Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton
Captain — Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department
Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager
Board member since 2018
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Maureen Ann Beauregard

Professional Experience

November 1991 to Present: Families in Transition, 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH
03101.

1995-Present. President, Families in Transition. Developed a Board of Directors and
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Responsible for
grant writing, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency personnel, program
development, day to day operations, reporting to state and federal agencies and public
relations.

¢ 2003to Present: Development and Implementation of 33 units permanent affordable
housing in Manchester.

e 2001-2003: Development of Families in Transition — Concord, 16 units of affordable
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and 10 designated
for transitional housing for homeless women and their children.

e 2001 to Present: Development of Families in Transition’s social entrepreneurship,
Family OutFITters thrift store and Employment Training Program.

e 1998 - 2001: Development of Millyard II Transitional Housing Program with 19
apartments and 1 interim unit for 3 families.

¢ 1995 - 1997: Development of Millyard I Transitional Housing Program with 12
apartments for homeless women with children.

e 1994 — 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for
Families in Transition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 501 ©

)

1991- 1994 New Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without
children. ~
e 1993 — 1994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children and assisting them in
attaining and maintaining housing.
e 1992 - 1993: Development and implementation of Amherst Street Transitional
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women.
s 1991 - 1992: Development and implementation of Spruce Street Transitional
Housing Program for 5 homeless women and their children.

November 1989-March 1991: Child Protective Service Worker 11 for the Division for Children
and Youth Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process.

November 1988-November 1989: Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating
Agency, Phoenix East, Haverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources
(AA/NA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents in halfway
house for alcoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group.

Education



Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies.

¢« ® o @

[ N

Professional Affiliations and Honors

1998 to 2004 — Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of
Directors.

1998 to 2004 — Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and
Investment Committee

2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen
Beauregard for Excellence in Non-Profit

2004: The Walter J. Dunfey Awards for Excellence in Management awarded to Families in
Transition

2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year

2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard
and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable
Housing in New Hampshire.

2002: Great Bay Foundation: $150,000 grant award for the development and implementation
of social entrepreneurship, Family OutFITters.

2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Channel — 9, 2003 Community Champions Award for
Homelessness for New Hampshire

2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to the U.S. Dept. of Housing &
Urban Development, SuperNOFA: I of top 10 narratives in the country.

2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee

2003 to Present: Intown Manchester, Economic Development Committee, Trustce

2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia’s Children Parent Advisory Council
2003 to Present: New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness, member appointed
by Governor Benson

2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member

2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives,
member

2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor

1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing Investment Fund, Investment Commuttee,
Trustee

1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998, 2003, founding
member



Education:

Stephanie Allain Savard, MSW, LICSW

s Masters in Social Work, Boston University, 1996,
» Bachelor of Arts — Honors in Psychology, Keene State College, 1992.
e Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency, Keene State College, 1992.

Licensure and Certification:
e New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, #941, April, 2000 - Present.
¢ Boston University Trauma Certificate Program, 2006.
¢ Low Income Housing Tax Credit Certified Credit Compliance Professional (C3P), 2000.

Awards & Honors:
= New Futures Thomas Fox Memorial Treatment Schelarship — Recognized for Treatment Work in Substance Use
Field, 2013.
e Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce “Leadership Greater Manchester Program,” Class of 2011,
Union Leader and Business Industry Association “‘40 Under 40" Leaders of New Hampshire, Class of 2004.
¢ NH Homeless Service Providers Award, NH Department of Health & Human Services, Office of Homeless &
Housing Services, 2003.

Professional Experience:
Chief Operating Officer, Families in Transition, Manchester, NH, December 1996 — Present.

Oversight of agency operations to ensure seamiess systems, fiscal responsibility, quality control and best
practices across departments. Provide oversight of development and revision of, adherence to agency policy
and procedures.

Oversee and manage supportive services department with up to 25 staff providing housing (emergency,
transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to serve 200 homeless individual and
families. Supportive services encompass individual case management, therapy, psycho-educational
workshops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.

Collaborate with Board of Directors and Management Team in non-profit development and program growth.
Develop and provide clinical oversight of a specialized gender-specific intensive outpatient substance use
treatment program specializing in co-occurring disorders, with a focus on trauma histories. Program
recognized as the Treatment Provider of the Year by the NH Alcohol and Other Drug Providers Association,
2013.

Develop and provide clinical oversight of an innovative therapeutic pre-school program for children and
families who are homeless with strength-based and family-focused services.

Provide clinical and administrative supervision for clinical program managers. Oversee a 24-hour crisis line.
Collaborate with senior management staff in daily operations of Families in Transition, including financial
decisions, program and housing development and human resources. Assume responsibilities and decision-
making for agency in the absence of the President. Collaborate with President, Board of Directors and
management team on strategic planning and implementation for the agency.

Served on Families in Transition Board of Directors Programs Committee and the primary liaison to

- Committee chair for agency.

Family Service Worker/Counselor, NFI Midway Residential Shelter, Manchester, NH, 1993 — 1996.

Provided support and treatment planning with families of children in judicial system. Conducted family
assessments and counseling during stay at short-term residential facility.

Supervised 15 adolescent males utilizing behavior management and normative culture techniques.
Managed all shifts; development and facilitation of summer activity program.



Clinical Social Worker Intern, CASPAR Emergency Service Center, Cambridge, MA, 1995-1996.
o Assisted in providing treatment services to transitional living program provided within emergency housing
program for single adults.
e Completed assessments and provided individual and group therapy to adults who were homeless in early
recovery from substance use. Provided case management for substance use, HIV/AIDS and housing needs.

Clinical Social Worker Intern, WorkSource of Work, Inc., Quincy, MA, 1994-1995.
s Provided case management, counseling and crisis intervention to people with chronic mental health
disorders.

VISTA Volunteer, Center for Human Services, Seattle, WA, Aug. 1992- Aug. 1993.
» Developed and supervised volunteer program, assisted in agency fundraising and grant writing; designed
marketing materials; assisted in coordinating Board of Directors and chaired Board commitiees.

Professional Expertise and Trainer Experience:

Brazelton Touchpoints Community Trainer, New Hampshire’s Brazelton Touchpoints Site with Families in
Transition, 2011 — present.
“Avoiding Third Degree Burns: A Professional First Aid Kit for Preventing Burnout” Conference Workshop,
New Hampshire Division of Children, Youth and Families State-wide Conference, 2014; State of NH Bureau of
Housing and Homelessness NH Homeless Provider Conference, 2013; Families in Transition Clinical
Department, 2011.
“Raising Voices: Strategies for Engaging Homeless & Formerly Homeless People in Local and National
Advocacy Efforts” Conference Workshop, Institute for Children, Poverty and Homelessness, Beyond Housing:
A National Conversation on Child Homelessness and Poverty Conference, NYC, 2014,
“Dealing with Difficult Conversations” Training, Families in Transition VISTA Program, 2011-2013;
Leadership Staff, 2012.

“Direct Service Training for Volunteers”, Families in Transition, 2013.

“Understanding Homelessness & Poverty” Presentation, St. Anselm’s College — Sociology Department, 2011
& 2012.

“Ethics in Professional Practice” Presentation, Families in Transition, 2009,

“Relational-Cultural Model with the People Experiencing Homelessness” Conference Workshop, State of NH
Bureau of Housing and Homelessness — NH Homeless Providers Conference, 2002.

Confident public speaker and community collaborator through active participation in multiple community
groups, coalitions and associations.

Service in Professional Societies, Government and Local Organizations:

Appointed Member, NH Governor’s Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery, March 2010 — Present.
Chair and member, Governor’s Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Treatment Taskforce, 2009 — Present.
Board of Directors Member, National Association of Social Workers —-NH Chapter, 2004-2008
o Vice-President 2006 — 2008
o Executive Council Member at Large 2004-2005
o Member 1996-Present.
Member, Lazarus House Transitional Housing Advisory Council, Lawrence, MA, 2004-2008.
Board of Directors Member, NH Coalition to End Homelessness, 2000- 2002,
Member, Manchester Continuum of Care, 2000-2007;
o Chair—2000-2001;
o Community Awareness Committee Chair, 2003-2004 & 2006-2007.



Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to utilize and expand the clinical and management skills have I attained from my
professional and academic training to secure a position in a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LICENSURE

Master — Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor September 2010- Present
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22, 2012-Present
Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010
*  Graduated with an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program
Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshite May 2006
*  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41
EMPLOYMENI
Vice President, Clinical & Supportive Services
Families in Transition-New Horizons December 20%, 2017 — present

»  Receivership-Interim Executive Director of Serenity Place
= Oversees all clinical and supportive services at Families in Transition-New Horizons including
emergency shelter, transitional and permanent supportive housing, Intensive Ourpatient Services,
Ourpatient services, Recovery Housing and programming,
Quality of control of healthcare facilities licensure. '
Owersight of fidelity of evidence based practices and models.
Oversight of staff competencies and required trainings for best practices across the agency.
Supervision of agency program managers and housing director.
Provide clinical supervisor for Licensure and certifications.
*  Quality control of all billing policies and procedures.
Clinical Director
Families in Transition Sept 1%, 2016- December 2017
*  Oversee and manage Sr. Housing Program Manager who supervises the supportive services department with up
to 25 staff providing housing {emergency, transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individual and families. Supportive services encompass individual case management,
therapy, psycho-educational worlshops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.
*  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct co-occurring
treatment 1o women only
*  Develop and staff Recovery Housing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service

programming

* Develop and oversight Open Doors outpatient programming for all transitional housing programs of FIT

*  Ensure quality programming across Families in Transitions clinical department

*  Provide training within the organization and community on substance misuse in NH.

*  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition’s various Supportive Service

»  Oversight of billing components of all levels of Co-occurring treatment.
Therapist January 2014- Present
Bedford Family Therapy

»  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private outpatient group practice



Utilize various evidence based practices CBT,DBT, and Secking Safety skills to help clients meet their own
individual goals

Conduct Drug and Alcohol assessments

Active participant in DWI Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals coming
from the Impaired Drivers Program

Participate in weekly supervision with other licensed clinicians part of the private group practice.

Clinical & Supportive Service Manager March 7, 2016- August 31+,2016
Families In Transition

Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
Manage the day o day operations for the Housing program of Families in Transition consisting of over 200
apartment units in New Fampshire.

Provide clinical and administrative supervision for a total of 14 staff for Families In Transition

Ensure compliance with budgetary and financial goals.

Maintain compliance with State, Federal, Accreditation, Contract and Insurance regulations.

Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition’s various Clinical Programs.

Program Manager of the Family Willow Substance Use Treatment Program September 2014-2016
Families In Transition

Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
Transitioned the program from grant funded 1o billing all commercial insurances

Increased accessibility of treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.

Provided clinical and administrative oversight of the FW Substance Use Treatment Program

Carmied a caseload of 12-15 individual clients providing co-occurnng evidence base therapeutic interventions.
Facilitated Intensive OQutpatient treatment in a group setting on a weekly basis to group of 12 women.
Provided training and education to staff on clinical intervention and best practices in the group setting.

Therapist May 2010- September 2014
Families In Transition

Facilitated Intensive Qutpatient Programing in a group setting daily for up w 12 clients
Carried a caseload of up to 15 people for individual therapy.

Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transition

Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients

Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting documentation in a timely manner
Helped implement new curriculum changes in the treatment programming

MSW Inteen May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford Counseling = Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

Conducted intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop comprehensive psycho-social assessments 1o
include diagnosis and substance use assessments

Provided psychotherapeutic intervention services 1o twenty-two individuals using brief treatment and cognitive
behavioral interventions

Auended therapeutic workshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, behavioral health and client driven treatment

planning

Case Manager June 2006- May 2010
Families In Transition

Provided in home case management services to 30 individuals and families 10 enhance housing stability among
the homeless population.

Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical programming of Families In Transition

Conducted program interviews for the community suppon program

Maintained all files with updated documentation, clear and concise progress notes and treatment plans
Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wellness to participants of the program

Collaborated with community partners to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

Providers Association Board of Directors-Vice President of Treatment  July 2014 to Present

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present
PRESENTATIONS

NH Association for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a Family System Loon Mountain June 2015



Providers Association: Addressing Substance Misuse in the Home Environment March 315,2016 at
Wentworth Douglas Hospital in Dover, NH

' REFERENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST




Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

Education

BosToN UNIVERSITY, TYNGSBORO, MA SEPTEMBER 2006-May 2009
Masters of Social Work

RiviER COLLEGE, NASHUA, NH SEPTEMBER 2004-May 2006

Bachelor of Arts in Human Development

»  Minor in Social Work
NEw HAMPSHIRE TECHNICAL INSTITUTE, CoNcORD, NH SEPTEMBER 2002- MaY 2004
Associates Degree in Early Childhood Education

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker in Massachusetts and New Hampshire
Experience
PSYCHOTHERAPY ASSOCIATES OF NORTH READING, NORTH READING, MA Jury 2013- PRESENT
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker
+  Provide individual and family counseling to children, adolescences, and adults
e  Provide service to adolescences during the tranisition into college and adulthood
»  Offer art and play therapy services to children ages 3-15 years old
e  Conduct psychotherapy assessments and formulate treatment plans
FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, MANCHESTER, NH
Child and Family Therapist OcToBER 2016-PRESENT
¢  Provide in-home family therapy
*  Supporting families through substance use, trauma and homelessness
«  Facilitiate therapeutic play groups and parenting groups
Program Manager/ Child and Family Therapist Octoser 2009- OcToBER 2012
¢ Provide trauma-informed therapeutic services to homeless children and families

»  Manage the trauma-informed therapeutic preschool and afterschool program

«  Provide supervision to clinical staff and early educators whose responsibility levels vary

+ Complete psychosocial assessments, develop treatment plans, and DECA/BERS assessment tools

s  Provide individual therapy, family therapy, parenting workshops, staff trainings, group therapy and crisis intervention
ELLis MEMORIAL, BOSTON, MA OcroBer 2012- May 2014
Clinical Supervisor

s 'Oversee clinical services for children being offered in the agency, including supervision to clinical staff and interns
+  Provide therapeutic services to children and families enrolled in Ellis’s educational programming
« Enroll and oversee services for children that have open cases with the Department of Children and Families
e  Offer in-house trainings and on-going support to early childhood providers
» Create and implement behavior management strategies to ensure success for children within the programs
MooRE CENTER SERVICES INC,, MANCHESTER, NH NovemBER 2008- OcToBER 2009
Case Manager, Children Services
s Assist families with children diagnosed with developmental disabilities and participate in crisis intervention planning
»  Oversee and manage child budget to provide services through the In Home Support program
s  Attend children’s individual education plan (IEP) meetings and collaborate with school systems on behalf of children's
education
EASTER SEALS RESIDENTIAL FACILITY Co-OCCURRING UNIT, MANCHESTER, NH SEPTEMBER 2008- May 2009
Master Level Clinical Intern
s Participate in individual and group therapy with adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
»  Develop curriculum for group therapy
e Involvement with drug court and the New Hampshire court system
+  Participated in training for Therapeutic Crisis Intervention
HIGH PLAIN ELEMENTARY, ANDOVER, MA SEPTEMBER 2007 - May 2008
Master Level Clinical Intern
¢  Led individual, group, and family therapy sessions employing a variety of techniques
e Provided emotional and behavicral support to clients with autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, GAS and depression
e  Served as liaison between staff and families on mental health issues and child development
Irainings
Certified trainer in Suicide Prevention through NAMI (National Association of Mental lllness) 2010
Certified trainer of Dr. Brazelton Touchpoints child development model {Harvard University) 2011
Certified Disaster Case Manager Supervisor (Catholic Charities) March2014
Faculty member participating on a team with mental health professionals, to help implement the Trauma-Informed
Early Education and Care Systems Breakthrough Collaborative, Created and implemented trauma-informed curriculum
training to early childhood educators. (BosToN PuBLIC HEALTH ComMissioN, BosToN MA) AucusT 2013-SePTEMBER 2014



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Maureen Beauregard | President 153,699 0% -

Stephanie Savard COO0 98,945 0% -

Meghan Shea VP of Clinical Services 85,000 50% 42,500

Kristen McGuigan Program Manager 03,654 100% 63,654




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
Jeffrey A. Meyers /
Commissioner ,, 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3887
603-271-9474 1-B00-852-9345 Ext. 9474
Christing M. Tappan - FAX: 608-271-4637 TDD Accesa: 1-800-796-2964 www.dhhs.oh.gov

Associate Commissioner
June 19, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION -

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a renewal option
to the sole source agreement with Families in Transition, Vendor #157730-B001, 122 Market
St. Manchester, NH 03101, for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportlve housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders, have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the
price limitation by $500,000 from $998,414 to $1,498,414 and by extending the contract
completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019, effective upon Govemor and Executive -
Council approval.100% Federal Funds

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 21, 2016 (ltem #11) and amended on April 18, 2017 (ltem #5A) and again on June
21, 2017 (Item #20A).

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 in the following account with authority to
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without approval
from Govemor and Executive Council, |f needed and justified.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN’
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SFY " Class Title Activity Current Increase/ | Modified

Code Budget | (Decrease) | Budget
502- Payments. to ' :
2017 500891 Providers 45057500 $499,207 . $0 $499,207
502- | Payments. to ' '
2018 500891 PFOVidl_BrS 45057500 $499,20? $0 $469,207
2019 502- | Payments.to | ,znoocng $0| $500,000] $500,000

- | 500891 | Providers

Total: | $998,414 | $500,000 | $1,498,414




His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
- and the Hongrable Executive Council
Page20f3

EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because the Contractor has been identified as having
the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting
women while allowing their child{ren) to remain in the mother's care.

The purpose for this request is to allow the Contractor to continue providing substance
use disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound
services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders
and have income at or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk
of becoming homeless. The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need
for residential and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who
have substance use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming
homeless. Women with substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high
intensity residential treatment.

Utilization pattems and research have.shown that women needing housing may not be

found eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing services due to substance use disorders.

. Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are

less likely to seek help due to concern that seeking help for a substance use disorder could
result in separation from their children. ‘

The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children
so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The seéond statutory purpose of the
TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work and education.
The vendor will address needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for
the children in residence. The program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with
the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The
Contractor is providing services that assist families to reduce and remove barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The
services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate dependence on public
assistance, and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while addressing clients’
substance use disorders. .

The vendor is providing on-site case management, intensivé group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children-to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to:

+ Communication classes

e Anger management classes

e Coping skills

» Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services '

e Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Splrituality and Life Coaching services



His Excellency, Govemoréhrlstophar T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Councll
Page 3 of 3

The Department is satisfied with the service provided by this Contractor. The original
agreement established services for one (1) year, and included the option to renew contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding,
satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive . Council.
Amendment #1 exercised one (1) of the two (2) years of renewal. This request, if approved,
exercises the final year-of renewal that is available in the contract.

- Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disarder
treatment services they need.

Area Served: Greater Manchester area.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assisténce
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

. in the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program. '

- Respgetitfully submitted,

. Tappan

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Approved by:

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission.Is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders
State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the OPEN DOORS - Homslessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 3rd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #3") dated this 19th of Aprll 2018, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department”) and Famillies in Transition (hereinafter referred to as “the Contractor”),
a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street Manchester, NH 03101 .

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Govemor and
Executive Council on September 21, 2016 (ltem #11) as amended on April 19, 2017 (ltern #5A)
and on June 21, 2017 (item #20A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
_ certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractar.have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and )

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Parag'raph 18 and Exhibit 'C-1, Paragraph 3,
the State modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract and renew
contract services for up to two (2) additional years, upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and to extend the completion date
to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2019. '

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,498.414.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.11, Paragraph 2.11.4, to
read:

2114 Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection, transmission,
storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SUD) records, information,
or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider, that safeguards, including
consent and notices required by 42 CFR Part 2, are provided prior to any
disclosure of Part 2 information. '

Femilies in Transition Amendment #3
S$8-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Suppotts for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
Substa Use Diso

6. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3, SFY 2019 Budget.
7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

\

Famiiies in Transition Amendmant #3
$5-2017-DFA-02-0OPEND-03 Paga 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention ‘

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting-Women
ta U jso

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dats written below,

State of New Hampshire
Dgpadrtment of Health and Hyman Services

L/l R | />

Date Christine M. Tappan/ T'
Associate Commissioner
Families in Transition.
May 18, 2018 :
Date amé: Maureen Beauregard
Title:  President
Acknowliedgement:
State of New Hampshire , County of_Hillsborough on May 18, 2018 , before the

undarsigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(4

Name and Title of Notary of Justice of the Peace
Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst, / Notary Public

7//«1@7 Y2

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My pommiasion Expires October 16, 2018

Families in Transition Amendment 23
5§5-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-03 Page 30of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
Sub 0] is

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this offi ice, is approved as to form,
substance, and exascution.

. OFFICE OE&HE ATTORNEY GENERAL

gl[p\ V¥ _ Z é(_ {/Z,—f
Date Name: @rlecce ). Aoss
: Title: Seprr Ass-'s#nnf‘/i-#rm.g Creneal

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Council of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: . (date of meeting)
|
i
i
|
L} ul;
=
Familles in Transition Amendment #3

§5-2017-DFA-02-CPEND-03 Page 4 of 4



Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3

SFY 2019 Budget
Families in Transition
Open Doors Budget
SFY 2019
VP of Clinical Services 39,100
Program Manager 62,730
Theraplst 52,280
Treatment Coordinator 19,000 2,470.00
Recovery Support Workers (24-7) 219,275
Benefits 74,014

466,400 tota) salaries and benefits

Computers/Printers 2,600 .
Educational/client program supplies 2,500
lab .. 3,300
Office Supplies 1,200
Travel 1,000
Telephone 1,500
Insurance 1,500 . : -
Advertising 2,500
Staff Education/Trainings 6,000
Client Basic Needs - Rent . - 5,000
Client Basic Needs - Clothes 1,000
Client Basic Needs - Food 3,500
Client Basic Needs - Bus Passes 1,000
Office Furniture 1,000

500,000

Families in Transition Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3 Contractor mitia!s:! ]§£
55-2017-DFA-02-Opend-03 - Pagelofl Date: May 18,2018



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

- 1. "Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach® shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Requlations,

2. “Computer Security [ncident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incldent” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident .
Handling Guide, National (nstitute of Standards and Technelogy, U.S, Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information™ or "Confidential Data” means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, healih, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.
Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services {(DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI}, Social Security Numbers {SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or other sensltive and confidential information.

4. *End User' means any person or entity {e.g., contractor, conlractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downsiream user, etc.) thal receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabillty Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. *“Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (elther failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denlal of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4, Last updale 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor |niﬁal\@_

DHHS information
Security Requiremants
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pl, PFl,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information” {(or "P{") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, Such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. .

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information™ in the HIFAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103,

11. *Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. *Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. .

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidentia} Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential information in response o a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contracior mmmﬁﬁ;_
DHHS Information
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K '
DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security-Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additiona!
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

8. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS. for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

-2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
emall is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
' Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4, Last update 04.04,2018 Exhlbit K Cantractor lnttials[ﬁ]é
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

" wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. '

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inapproprate disclosure. of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
_ data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

Nl. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract.- After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retentioh

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations,

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vuinerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Depariment of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the temmination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policles and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable,

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidentfal information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program. of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Assoclate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associats Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur'over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when'the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Securily Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K )
DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. :

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (46 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164} that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and'
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology..
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https./iwww.nh.gov/doitivendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Techriology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor leams of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshirs network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this!
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards. as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b., safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media caontaining PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Last updste 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initialsf. ﬂé
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Réquirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential [nformation received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep thelr credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

~

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor.compliance with this

- Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidenttal Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSSREPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor iearns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procadures must also address how the Contractor will:

Identify lnadents. '
Determines if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
Report suspected or confimed Incldents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

VA, Last updale 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor InIUaﬂﬂi_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

~

3. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for lnformatibn Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Iniuahm

DHHS Information
Securily Requiraments
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

JefTrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
. 603-271-5474 1-800-852-3345 Ext, 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhe.nh.gov
Directorj .
June 6, 2017

His Excellency, Govemnor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend sole source
agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential andfor supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have
income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming
homeless in Strafford County, by increasing the price limitation by $1,481,326 from
$1,481,326 to $2,962,652 effective July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2018. These agreements were originally
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September
7, 2016 (ltem#9), and September 21, 2016 (ltem#11) and were subsequently amended on
April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A). 100% Federal Funds.

Current Increase/ New

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Budget | (Decrease) | Budget

Greater Nashua

\ 615 Amherst St. | 166574- :
Council on $500,000 $500,000 | $1,000,000
Alcoholism Nashua, NH 030563 B001
Hope on Haven | 326 Rochester Hitl Rd. 275119-
Hill, Inc. Rochester, NH 03867 | Bop1 | »462119 | $482,119 | $964,238
Families in 122 Market St. 157730-

Transition | Manchester, NH 03101 |  B0O1 $499.207 | $499,207 | $998,414

Total: $1,481,326 | $1,481,326 | $2,962,652

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018, upon the availability and continued
. appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

1



His Excellency, Govermnor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 of 4

. in residence. . The program being funded by this contract is uniquely allgned with the purposes
of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The vendors are
providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventing
them from fully pammpahng in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to
provide for their families, while addressing participants' substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to;

« Communication classes

* Anger management classes

o Coping skills

« Childbirth education classes

« Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services

« Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by these vendors. The original
agreements call for the provision of these services for one (1) year, with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory
vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The previous
amendment renewed the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the
contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children .
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

. This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #2") dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department") and Families in Transition
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a place of
business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and
Executive Councll on September 21, 2016 (#11) and amended by an agreement
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (Item#5A), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
- specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and ' :

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and -
Executive council; and | ' ' '

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation without extending the
completion date of the contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the 'mutual_:o@yenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto .agree to
amend the contract as follows: .

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $499,207 from
$499,207 to read: $998,414.

CAYHHEMDO1)



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

(/2lt7 |

Date ' ~ Terry Smi
Director

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

June 2, 2017 1
Date Namfe: Maureen Beabregard -
Title: President

Acknowledgement:
State of New Hampshire . County of Hillsborough on JuneZ2, 2017

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or

satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
- that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(R bk, Qi st

Name and Title of N8tary or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Commizaion Explres October 16, 2018

CADHHSN00213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this offics, is apptdved as to form,
substance, and execution. ' ‘

OFWE ATT EY GENERAL
C//fé/z”? VJX(

Date { 211::'21:3: fw M}ﬂ\‘i@)

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeling) . : .

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CADHHSA00213



STA-TE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: §03-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov
Director

February 23, 201f

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu o,
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION.

Autharize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of -becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Councit approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (ltem #8), and September 21,
2016 (tem #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current
: Budget
Greater Nashua Council on 615 Amherst St. 166574-B001 $500,000
Alcoholism Nashua, NH 03063
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-B001 $482,119
Rochester, NH 03867
Families in Transition 122 Market St. 157730-B001 $499,207
Manchester, NH 03101
Total: | %$1,481,326

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326
Total: $1,481,326
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders: have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been
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and the Honorable Executive Council
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identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child{ren) to remain in the mother's care. These amendments
are no additional cos!, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment. However, these
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown thal women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due 1o substance use disorders. Additionafly,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely o seek help
due to individual concerns that an adrnission to needing help could result in separation from their
children. .

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability o provide
for their families, while addressing participants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring menta) health ilinesses. Residential treatment will -be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic
biopsychosacial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across alt services and levels of care. All services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother's care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

. C\ommunicalion classes

« Anger management classes:®

» Coping skills

¢ Childbirth education ctasses

s Nurturing parenting classes : .
« Lactation services

+ Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for one (1) year, with the option to renew. for up to two (2) additional years, based upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Govemor and
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the OPEN DOORS —~ Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred o as “Amendment #1”) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
“State” or "Department”) and Families in Transition (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"),
a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
+ Council on September 21, 2016 (#11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of

certain sums specified; and ’

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

. WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

I. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
-Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, .

State of New Hampshire _
Department of Health and Human Services

7 e
i

Date : Terry Smith
Director

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

February 22, 2017 . {2 %Z:: 1 2¢ o/t _/iéﬂé mgéﬁ
Date Narhe: Maureen Beauregard

Title: President

Acknowledgement: R

Siate of New Hampshire s County of Hillsborough on February 22, 2017 ,
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

, RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
—_ )J My Commission Expires October 18, 2016
/a. Vy}jlé /
Name afid Titls of Notdry or Jfistica of the Peacs

Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst. / Notary Public

CADHHS/1 00213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution. ~ _
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

YIEAL 4 /{/L/k/] >
H FA i

Date ] 1 151&— Name: MM A\HW

i [ M

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and

Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ‘ (date of

meeting)

Title:

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
" Title:

CADHHIN0G21)



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ‘\“N/

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
- DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
Jeflrey A. Meyers
Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
K 603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 8474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbs.nh.gov

Director

August 24, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Families in Transition, (Vendor # 157730-B001), 122 Market Street,
Manchester, NH 03101 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services, These
services include: residential and/or supportive housing, wraparound services to pregnant
and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at or
below the 185% Federal Poverty Level and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in
Strafford County in an amount not to exceed $499,207. This agreement will be effective upon
Governor and Executive Council through June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $499 207
| Total: $499,207
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is oné of three vendors statewide
that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment
services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the
mother's .care. This is the third of three sole source contracts for these services. The
Governor and Executive Council approved one of the contracts on August 3, 2016 (Late {tem
A}. Itis anticipated that the second contract will appear on the September 7, 2016 Govemor
and Executive Council meeting agenda.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are cumrently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
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treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children. .

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funds were transferred in the 2017
budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing the State. Substance abuse is often a
root cause of homelessness. Families in Transition (FIT) is currently working on expanding
their services to better assist the growing need of families facing substance abuse and/or -
housing matters. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for
children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory
purpose of the TANF program s to promote the independence of needy families through work,
and education. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and
removing barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the
larger community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders. )

This agreement includes language that aliows the Department to renew services for up
to two (2) years upon satisfactory provision of services, continued funding and Governor and
Executive Council approval.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental- health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planrning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may inciude, but are not limited to:

e Communication classes .

* Anger management classes

¢ Coping skills

e Childbirth education classes

» Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services

* Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

Al services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. This vendor
is a newly established -24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum. '
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Should the Govemor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or '
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder
treatment services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

TR

Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by: h—
J y A. Meye
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence,



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: QPEN DOORS Home eqtion & Supports for Low c nt and Pagenting Wormen with Substance Use

i -2017-DF -Opend-03

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information thal is private, confidential or proprietary most
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address -
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street '
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Families in Transition 122 Market Street
Manchester, NH
1.5 Coniractor Phone 16 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number ' 05-95-45-450010-6146
{603) 641-9441 X251 June 30, 2017 3499,207
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin, Director 603-271-9558 '
1.11 Contracior Slgnaturc 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
v,}/)@JJA-UA M ﬂ/ Maureen Beauregard, President
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH »County of  Hifishorough
On 8-15-16 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satlsfactonly

proven to be the person whosc name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he exccuted this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. .

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
RUTH A. BYREK, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

[

1.132 Name and Title of Notary o Jifstice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin, Asst. Notary Public

1.14 State Agcncy Signature 1.15 Name and Title of Statc Agency Signatory

'g/ Date: 7/"{7/" ALk Jewees, BMC“;{ a0l
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1. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*State™), engages
contrector identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor’) to perfosm,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
{“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency a5 shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date").

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and int the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all cbligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shail
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shal] have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwisc payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA

‘8017 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithsianding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actvally
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all stalutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal; state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,

‘including. but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

laws. This may include the requircment to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensurc that persons with communication
disabililies, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not diseriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexval orientation, or nationa! origin and will take
afTirmative action 1o prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Exccutive Order No. §1246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Depariment of Labor (41
C.FR. Part 60), and with any rules, rcgulations and guidelines
as the Suate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permil the State or United States access to any of the

- Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of

asceraining compliance with ail rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. _

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expensc provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services, The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwisc authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. )

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tcrm of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shali not permit any subcontracter or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement,

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omlssions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default™): -

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 Railure to submit any repont required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurtence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, cffective two
(2) days afier giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
peniod from the date of such nolice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or . :

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. .

9.1. As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean ail
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, compuier
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,.
all whethet finished ar unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propenty of the State, and
shall be relurned to the State upon demand of upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 31-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Oflicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report {“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shalt have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employecs.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and bold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and &ll claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employces, by or on behalf of any person, on sccount of,
based or resulting from, arising out of {or which may be
claimed to 2rise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing-herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not iess than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss caverage form cavering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a centificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall aiso furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any rencwals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated hercin by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Comtracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior writicn
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrecs,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation”).

45.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursttant 1o this Agreement. Contractor shail
furnish the Contracting Officer identificd in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any

applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are -

incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employec of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions-hereof afier any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its righis with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed (o have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed 10 the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the partics hereto and only afier approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to-
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agrecment shall be construed in 2ccordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutoal
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The partics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit,

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words conlained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the anached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. [n the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in 2 number of counterparts, cach of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings telating hereto.

Contractor Initials \1\__&
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Woman with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

Scope of Services ‘

1. Provisions Applicable to All Sérvices

1.1.

1.2

13,

14,

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith,

The Contractar shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter {rent asslstance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual famity;

1.2.2. Child care and lransportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent is employed in which case services can be extended:;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.24. Non-medical services not covered by Madicaid or privale health insurance.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder {SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
an_d!or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders; _
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of pat’ucupant eligibility determination, as spec:fed
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand cument services, provide new beds, or increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Madicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with the development of program processes, service provision, and
overail program outcomes. Contractor shal) work in collaboration with DFA to ensure
desired program benchmarks are achieved timely .

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited {o:

FamiBes In Transflion | \ExhibitA Contractor lniﬁals_m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.8.

1.8.1. Requirements goveming human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student intems, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Depariment reserves the right, at its ‘sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department's Sgntinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable

system to record all encounter notes; including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Coniract
shall: '

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
- 1.10.1.4.Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenroliment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2 'Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.11. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services through
referrals to local support services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2,1.3. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.4. Access to onsite age developmentally appropriate childcare during treatment
and/or age developrnentally appropriate childcare when needed.

2.1.5. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.6. Wraparound services.

2.1.7. Case management services,

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full panticipation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's

Families in Transition Exhibit A Contractor Initials _ﬂ&
55-2017-DFA-Q1-OPEND-03
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevantion and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

ability T provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women's
substance use disorders.

24. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2.  Ongoing public service announcements (radioftelevision).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in localiregional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed In targeted areas. )

2.45. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

2451, Commqniry based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.53. Social service agencies.

2.,4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Conlractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but Is not imited to:

2.5.1. [nitial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial .evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
hitp://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the approprate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

26.1. In-house, on-site, ovemight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facllity licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Qutpatient SUD Treatmen! Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the ability to provide onsite substance use disorder freatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apariments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing. Funding for
Supportive Housing services shall be limited to four (4) months based of
TANF regulations around non assistance categories.

Families in Transillon Exhiblt A Contractor Inlials M_

55-2017-DFA-01-OPEND-03
Pagelof§ Dale _8-15-16



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A '

26.3. 6utpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatmenl services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and afler
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1.- Housing.
2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.
27.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Suppart Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infat Death
Syndrome {SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe ‘sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrekids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.4 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.full. pdf

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide Interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing 8 waiting list. The Contractor shall:

29.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate leve! of care
becomes avallable, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1.1. Al least one 60 minule Individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery suppori services, as needed by the client;

2.8.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arisas, to assass and

. respond. . ,
Families in Transhion ’ Exhiblt A Contractor Inftials M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and’ Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

28.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC), and
Tuberculosis {TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.
29.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual pariners and infants.

29.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
. transmission does not occur.

29.24. Referralto HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Eslablish a walting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision 6f Interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatmaent or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools ~and educatlon to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Asses clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Toba_ooo .
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as grounds for discharging clients from
services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder ireatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and inlerventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

211.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:
2.12.1. ‘A pian for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not fimited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

A
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Woman with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access o the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but.are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1, Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communicatlon skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Pian to transltion clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
{hitp://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the  ASAM  guidelines
{http:/f'www.asam.org/publicationsithe-asam-crileria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their famllies.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide stsffing to fulfil the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall include medical and behavioral health
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice and
must be pursuant with Chapter He-P B00 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules,
Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation as well as with
ASAM guidelines around Intensive Outpatient Programs referenced in tevel 2.1
which can be accessed at hitp:///www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria.
These shall be applicable staffing for this contract.that are referenced in this rule and
should include, but are not limited to:

Families in Transition . Ennibit A . Contractor Initials
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2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board
of Mental Health Licensed Clinician, :

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcoho! and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs andfor LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One half time advance registered nurse on staff or by referral

2.14.6. One (1) full-time individua! with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) half time director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist with experience in data collection, surveillance, and evaluation of
social determinants of health and other public health and community health
indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCWHIVIT B & STDs.
- The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or
2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite lraining as approved by the Depariment; and
2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and compleled the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care
is maintained In a state of an emergency.

2.17.2. Creating safety and.-emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2. Infection contral and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporling employee injuries

2.17.2.4, Fire monitoring, waming, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.
2.17.3. Ensuring afternative housing is available for all clients and their children.
2.17.4. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited {o:

Families in Transition Exhibit A . Cantractar Initials
§S-2017-DFA-01-QPEND-03
Poge 73 - ate _8-15-16



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOQRS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.18.

2.18.

2.20.

2.17.4.1. Adult and infant CPR.
2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxons.
2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.
2.17.4.4, Universal precautions
The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement continue beyond the contract

. end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract peried.

2.18.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible services. .

2.18.3. Seek altemate, sources of funding for non-billable services from sources
* Including but not limited to .

2.18.3.1. Grants from private trusts and foundations
21832, lndividual and corporate donations
2.18.3.3. Event fundraising

2.18.3.4. Private funding raised through the growth of FITs two social
entrepreneurial business ventures

The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reperting requirements and/or time -
frames specified In the contract. .

The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2,19, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1.

The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Depantment-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying bamiers expedenced when providing services In
the previous month,

3.1.3. Pian to address barmiers Identified in Section 3.1.2 dunng the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

41,

4.2,

¥
The Conltractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

The Contractor attempt to contact a8 minimum of 95% of the indnnduals on the
waiting list described in Section 2.9.3 are at least one time per month.

Famifles in Transllion Exhibit A Contractor Inilials j I i E
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- 4.3,

4.4,

4.5.

The contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled In program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care for their needs.

The contract shall ensure that 80% of clients are referred to onsite employment
programming to increase In financial stability and reduce dependence of public
assistance. .

The contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three:
receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contracter shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified In this' contract are available to a minimum of 50 families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire region. _

8.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities In
Section 2.4 to the Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract
effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from the
contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections, 2.8, 2.17.2.4 and
2.17.4.3 to the Depariment no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9 to the
Department ance every two months.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.17.2 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development cummiculum used in trainings
described In Section 2.17.4 to the Department no later than 60 days from the
contract effective date.

Familles In Translton Exhlbit A Cantractor Inltials
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"Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This conlract is funded with federa! funds. Department access lo federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S,
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Familles, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth warking day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement,

3.2.The Involce must be submitted by mail or e-mail to: . '

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health-and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Afinal payment request shali be submitted no laler than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contraclor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, nule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When Lhe contract price [imitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at fuil capaéity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to -
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approvat of the Govemor and
Executive Council.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
- under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contracter for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the futherance of the aforesald covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal end State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance wilh applicable federat and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall ba made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the detemmination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall mairtain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation

" regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that al! applicants for services shall be parmitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of hisfher right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Departmenl regulations,

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a paymenl, gratuity or offer of employment on behal of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise prowded by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure.the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense cother than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1, Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be estabhshed
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Spedial Provisions Contractor Inltials §§EE
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data-evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolis, and other records requested or required by the
Department,

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services. . ’

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Depastment regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audil to the Depariment within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. lf is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations™ and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the Uniled States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to

i the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2, Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held fiable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
excaption.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made 1o
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attormey or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submil the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financiatl Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rete of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and-upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the abligations of the parlies hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the temn of this Contract and/or
survive the temmination of the Contract) shali terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other maternials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (repon, documenl etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in parnt
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials {written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prier approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilties
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirernents, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facitities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with loca! building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contracier will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. I the recipient receives $25,000 or more and 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOF on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 60 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEQP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Cerlification Forms are available at; http:/fwww.ojp.usdoj/aboutiocripdisicert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficlency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting egency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1868 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pifét Program for Enhancement of Contractor Empioyee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply 1o all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
f WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) )
(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistieblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (¢}, in all
subcontracts over the simplified ‘acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose 1o use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform cerlain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountabiiity for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shali evaluale the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adegquate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

- When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2.  Have a wrilten agreement with the subcontractor Ihat specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctionsfrevocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate. .
19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts,

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action..

DEFINITIONS ‘
As used in the Conlract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with slate and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractar Manual which is
entitied "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL. If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue far each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service thal the Contractor is to provide to eligjibie individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or thal specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contracior Initials M’L
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

EVISIONS GENERAL PROVISIONS
{
1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ali obligations of the State
hereunder, including without fimitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
-under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or avaiability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or olherwise
modifies the appropriation or availabliity of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or avallable funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2 Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement = - -

Coieh F e,

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, "develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detalled
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any informaticn or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Pian. i

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a methad of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the gransition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications In lts
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Depariment reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued avallabllity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

v

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor lnitiala _m{z
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractors representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE { - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT CF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5180 of the Drug-Free
Warkplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtille D; 41 U.S.C., 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1889 regulations were amended and published as Part Ii of the May 25, 1950 Federal Register (pages
21681-21681), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee {(and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of cerlificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the cerdification. The cedificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debamment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505
* Ve
1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continus 10 provide a drug-free workplace by.

1.1.  Publishing a statement nolifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awarensss program to inform employees about
1.21. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a capy of the statement required by paragraph {a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employmenl under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a viotation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within len calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position litle, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity tha convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exthibit D ~ Certification regarding Drug Free Conlractor Inmﬂs&@__
Workplace Requiremenis 6
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New Hampshire bepartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1.  Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1873, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law anforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s}) for the performance of work done in_
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (sireet address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

. Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date

. Maureen Beauregard
President

Exhibit D - Centification regarding Drug Free Contractor mmnm
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARD|NG LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govermnment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's représentative, as idenlified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the following Cerfification;

US DEPARTMENT OF. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT CF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temparary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Titte XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been pald or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or ¢ooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). '

2, If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered info. Submission of this certification is @ prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1252, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
cettification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure,

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016

Date Maureen Beauregal
Title:
President
Exrdbit E - Cenification Regarding Labbying Contractor Iniials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contracior's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of tha General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERleICATION ’
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
cerlification set out below. )

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necassarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or exptanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services'.(DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which refiance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an emoneous cetification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govemment, DHHS may terminale this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participan! leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. Thelems “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” *lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” *primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
"voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Execulive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this propaosal (contract) that, should the

- proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter intd any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debamed, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntanly excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inefigibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the cestification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nenprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9 No-thfng contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowiedge and

Exhibit F - Cef'ﬂﬂcaﬂon Regarding Debarment, Suspension Confracior Initials
Ard Other Responslbility Malters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. -

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarity excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS '
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debared, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
conneclion with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) .
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theR, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmenta! entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1}({b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had ane or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local} terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospeclive primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {cantract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (coniract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, cerlifies to the best of ts knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debamed, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to cartify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall altach an explanation to this proposal {contract),

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debamment, Suspension, Inaligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016 WML
Date ame: Maureen Beaurega

Tille:  President

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspanaion Contractor Initia)
And Oiher Responsibllity Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
. Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representalive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the defivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, nationa origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seclion 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabifity, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Seclions 6108-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities recelving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizalions), Executive Order No. 13558, which provide fundamental prnciples and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Nalional Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violalion of the certification shall be grounds for

suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment. ]

N Exhibht G
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nationa! origin, or sex
against a reciplent of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: )

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.
) fo LR

Contractor Name: Families In Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date : Maureen Beauregald
- Title:  president
Exnibl G
Contractor Inilials { & ‘
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and Whistiotfower prolocions
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
‘law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or aicoho! treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resutt in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contracior agrees lo make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994.

Contractor Nar'ﬁe: Families in Transition

Aug'15, 2016
Date

Name: Maureen Beaureg
Title:  president

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Inixiahm_
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Pubtic Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
recelve, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definltlons.

a. "Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section 164.402 of Tille 45,
- Code of Federal Regulations..

b.  Business Assogciate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations,

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Agdregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggtegataon in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. .

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXill, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1998, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i, “Individual® shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifi able Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Umted States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information® shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Seclion 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

2014 Exhibit | Conlractar Initials l]M
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(2)

“‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. "Secrefary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Sef:urity Standards for the 'Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 456 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

QOther Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH '

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information {PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHL in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or dlsclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Assocaate
. As raquired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
li.  For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i}
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PH! will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third patty to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

2014 Exhibit | Centractor lnnldsw_
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. ' .

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

‘safeguards of PHI pursuant 1o the Privacy and Securty Rule, the Business Associate

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: '

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected heaith information-was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected heaith information has been
mitigated.

The Business Assoclate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. .

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
recelved by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions an the use and disclosure of PH! contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PSI

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of -
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, .
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Assoclate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covéred Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528, '

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assoclate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164,528,

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Cavered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable,

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164,520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Assoclate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promplly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disciosure of
PHI.

TJermination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit . The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity, If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement ‘shail be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exndbit | Contractor Initials
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Surviyal. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retumn or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) ), the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement,

2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |

Families in Transition
The State Name of the Contractor

4‘/1 Z———— W
Signature of Authordzed Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

awlgrle T Maureen Beauregard
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Bongs) Cetos WEW ' President
Title of Authorized Representative - Title of Authorized Representative
F-aS- 1L August 15, 2016
Date ' ~ Date

2014 Exniblt | Contreclor Inltats M
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIL|TY AND TRANSPARENCY
: AC A) COMPLIANCE :

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individuat
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and swarded on or-after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to execulive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initiat award is befow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resutt in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subjecl to tha FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 GFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Heaith and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject o the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program scource
Award title descriplive of the purpase of the funding action
Location of the entity '

Principle place of perfformance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five execttives if:
10.1. More than B0% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OPNDN A BN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made. . '

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabillty and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part. 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Conlractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above tothe NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date N
Title: President
i
Exnibli J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor intlials
Accountability And Transpavency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

As the Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, [ certify that the responses fo the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _ 825360399

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S, federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cocperative agreements; and (2} $25,000,000 or more in annug)
gross revenues from U.S. fedemal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
1f the answer to #2 above is NO, slop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15{d} of the Securities -
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780{d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
19867 :

NO . YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 abave is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: ’ Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: __. Amount:
Name: _ Amount; :
Narne:_ Amount;
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federsl Funding Contractor inltiala

: Accountability And Transpasency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 4™ Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #47) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326
Rochester Hill Road Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 3, 2016 (Late Item #A) as amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A); June 21, 2017 (Item #20A),
and June 20, 2018 (Item # 21), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend -the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,964,238.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #4,
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B — Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Exhibit B-1 — Amendment #4, SFY20 Budget.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment #4 Contractor [nitials KlJ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be retroactively effective to June 30, 2019 upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Servicgs

asla e s [

Date’ Katja S. Fox '
Director

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

]2z |19 Noangle e\ Do

Date Nani

Titlezg\{khm Srecdinr Dicecdoe

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of Mw County of Sraftod on 1°23-20'9  before the .
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

2 r ﬁ n :' Ora »" D}'rec/{—m
Name anﬁi itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

P\ 2T, s
My Commission Expires: 4-17- 20 24 3\‘??:6&“\58104’."-?%

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Na%. v W ﬂﬂ

Title:

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
4
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. ~ ¢ Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A — Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the
Federally mandated purposes of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods,
personal care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual
family unless the parent is employed in which case services can be
extended,;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement,
including training and education, and other employment-related
services that do not provide basic income support;

1.2.4, Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance, subject to Department approval which may include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.4.1. Dental services.
1.24.2. Auto registration.
1.2.43. Personal care.
1.2.44. Books and tuition.

The Contractor shall provide ASAM level 2.7 and lower Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) treatment, supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible
pregnant and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep a record of how many individuals are screened, how
many are determined eligible, and how many are served, as specified in Section
1.3.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials i :‘\J
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services or increase services that are
currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services currently
available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

1.7. The Contractor shail work, in partnership, with the Department to review/assist
with program processes, service provision, and overali program outcomes.
Contractor shall work in collaboration with the Department to ensure desired
program benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws and
regulations which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject’s research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using
individuals served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department’s approval prior to initiating
any research involving the subjects or participants related to this
contract. The Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to
reject any such human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents and sentinel events which
include, but are not limited to reporting:

1.9.1. All critical incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor
agrees that:

1.9.1.1.  "Critical incident” means any actual or alleged event or

situation that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious
harm to physical or mental health, safety, or well- being,
including but not limited to:

1.9.1.1.1. Abuse;

1.9.1.1.2. Neglect;

1.9.1.1.3. Exploitation;

1.9.1.1.4. Rights violation,;

1.9.1.1.5. Missing person;

1.9.1.1.6. Medical emergency,

1.91.1.7. Restraint; or

1.9.1.1.8. Medical error.

1.9.2 All contact with law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon
as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials K Ll _
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Exhibit A — Amendment #4

1.9.3. All Media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no later than 24 hours following the incident;

1.9.4. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

1.9.4.1. - Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any
individual who is receiving services under this contract;

1.94.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the Department,
which shall include:

1.8.4.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

1.9.42.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the individual(s)
involved in the event;

1.9.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

1.9.424  Description of the event, including what, when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant
information, as well as the identification of any other
individuals involved;

1.94.25. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

1.9.4.26. The identification of any media that had reported the
event.

1.9.4.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall
submit a completed “Sentinel Event Reporting Form”
(February 2017), available at
https./iwww.dhhs.nh.gov/dehcs/documents/reporting-
form.pdf to the Department.

1.9.4.4. Additional information on the event that is discovered after
filing the form in Section1.9.4.3. above shall be reported to the
Department, in writing, as it becomes available or upon
request of the Department; and

1.9.45. Submit additional information regarding Sections 1.9.4.1
through 1.9.4.4 above if required by the department; and

1.9.46. Report the event in Sections 1.9.4.1 through 1.9.4.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System (WITS) or an
alternative electronic health record approved by the Department to record all
client activity and client contact within three (3) days following the activity or
contact as directed by the Department. The Contractor shall:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials ‘\)
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Exhibit A — Amendment #4

1.10.1.  Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening.
1.10.1.2. Fee determination.
1.10.1.3. Admission.
1.10.1.4. Billing.
1.10.1.5. Disenrollment.
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data.

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific
treatment goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

1.11. The Contractor shall, obtain written consent from the client utilizing the consent
form as provided by Department prior to providing services. The Contractor
shall ensure:

1.11.1.  Any client refusing to sign the informed consent form is not:
1.11.1.1. Entered into the WITS (or approved alternative) system.
1.11.1.2. Provided services under this contract.

1.11.2.  Any client refusing to sign the consent form is assisted with finding
alternative payers for necessary services.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
have access to services that include, but are not limited to:

211, Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

212 Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as
available.

21.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.
2.1.4, Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

215. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.
2.1.7. Wraparound services.
2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barrers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials K ‘ q
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OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A — Amendment #4

2.3.

2.4

2.5.

2.6.

The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to
end their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting
women's ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting
women’s substance use disorders.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served which may include, but are not limited
to:

24.1. Street outreach programs.

242 Ongoeing public service announcements (radio/television).
243 Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.
244 Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availabilty of such SUD treatment and
residential services for pregnant and parenting women and their
children distributed to the network of:

2451 Community based organizations.
2.45.2. Health care providers.

2.453. Social service agencies.

2454, Ethnic community based organizations.

The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models
and/or best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to
monitor case management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.51. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the client’'s Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders {DSM-5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial
evaluation completed in accordance with Technical Assistance
Publication (TAP) 21: Addiction Counseling Competencies, available
at  bttp://store.samhsa.gov/product/ TAP-21-Addiction-Counseling-
Competencies/SMA15-4171.

The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. This may include, but is not limited to:

26.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD)
residential treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 826.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials l’;\l\l
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Exhibit A — Amendment #4

26.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up
to four (4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite
substance use disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may
include, but is not limited to, apartments within an apartment complex,
group housing, or shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing
services shall be limited to 4 months based off the TANF regulations
around non-assistance categories.

26.3. QOutpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization
Services that allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving
scheduled onsite SUD treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first
24 hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services
and after being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

271, Housing.

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.

274 Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment
services, as appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother’s care.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of
Sudden Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant
Death Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Wiritten policies are developed that describe the practices to be used
to promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the
American Academy of Pediatrics {AAP) when infants are napping or
sleeping. For detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.f
ull.pdf .

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be
licensed but should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to
developmentally appropriate childcare.

284 Supports for before and after school care are available for school age
children.
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2.8.5.

Arrangements are in place that allow children to continue attending
school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:
2.9.1. Contact the Doorway in the client's area to connect the client with

SUD treatment services.
2.9.2. Assist the client with accessing services by:
2.9.2.1. I|dentifying alternate providers.
2.9.2.2. Actively reaching out to alternate providers on behalf of the
client.

2.9.3. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative
provider. These services shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.3.1.  Atleast one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.3.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.3.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on
the fetus for pregnant woman.

293.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess
and respond.

294 Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC),
and Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.94.1. The risks of needle sharing.

2.8.4.2.  The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.4.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2944, Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.

2.945. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.5. Establish and maintain a waiting list that monitors the wait time for
clients to receive services, from the date of initial contact to the date
clients first receive services, other than screening and assessment.
The Contractor shall ensure the waiting list includes but is not limited
to:

2.9.5.1. A unique patient identifier;
2.9.5.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment;
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials _KU
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2.9.5.3.  Provision of interim services and sources of those services:

2954, Referrals made for treatment or interim services; and

2.9.5.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.9.6.

Provide a monthly report to the Department, indicating the average
wait time for all clients, by type of service and payer source.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco education and treatment to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1.
2.10.2.

2.10.3.

Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department’s Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco
cessation counselors available through the QuitLine; and

Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all
clients based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013)

domains.

2.11.1.

2.11.2.

2.11.3.

2.11.4.

The Contractor shall:

Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent.

Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written
in terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SUD)
records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider,
that safeguards, including consent and notices required by 42 CFR
Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1.
2122

2.12.3.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
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A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not
limited to, linking women with community services within the area in
which she will be permanently housed after receiving treatment
services.

Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children
have access to the treatment plan-specific services.
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2.124. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are
not limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid or other private
insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.44. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4 6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes. |

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP
27: Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-
for-Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://Avww.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but
are not limited to:

2.13.1,  Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling.

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers
working within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Nonclinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling
services for clients and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this contract, which shall include medical and behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice in accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health
Facility Rules, Part He-P 826 Rules for Residential Treatment and
Rehabilitation. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited
to:

2.14.1. A minimum of one licensed supervisor, defined as:

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials K‘\J
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2.14.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC); or

2.14.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC} who also holds
eth Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

2.14.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

2.14.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided
and the number of clients served including, but not limited to:

2.14.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCs, LADCs and
individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice of
Board of Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any
clinical or recovery support services within their scope of
practice.

2.14.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have
completed the required coursework for licensure by the Board
of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental
Health Practice of Board, or Psychology and are working to
accumulate the work experience required for licensure.
Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowledge provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.3. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) who may
deliver intensive case management and other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certification as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowledge provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.3. Ensuring no licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve
(12) staff, in accordance with evidence-based practices.

2.14.4. Providing ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals
in accordance with evidence based practices, at a minimum:

2.14.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources of
therapeutic  approaches, co-therapy, and periodic
assessment of progress.

2.14.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials \)
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2.14.5.

2.14.6.

2.14.7.

One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP)
through staffing or referral.

One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Public Health Epidemiologist in order to
collect data, complete surveillance, and complete evaluation of social
deteminants of health and other public health and community health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB &
STDs. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1.
2.16.2.

2.16.3.

Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or

Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and

Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served and ensure the safety of

clients by:

217 1.

2.17.2.

2.17.3.

Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as
well as at discharge based on policies and processes approved by
the Department within 30 days from the contract effective date.

Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the
contract effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of

protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy

and procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.4,

2.17.5.

Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their
children.

Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster
situations through continuous staff development that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
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2.18.

2.19.

- 2.20.

2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.
2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.
2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for
any eligible services.

2.18.2. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from
sources the contractor may identify.

2.18.3. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has
in place for the population at need.

The Contractor shall ensure Individual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for
all program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor
shall ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or
community partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3.  Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective
action plan described in Section 6.1, as monitored by the Department, until such
time the Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.
3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing

55-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02 Page 12 of 14 Date j...&] \C\

services in the previous month.
3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following

month.
3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the number of individuals
screened, determined eligible, and served as provided in Section 1.4.
3.3. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents, as provided in Section 1.9, as
soon as possible and no later than 24 hours following the incident.
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3.4.

3.5.

The Contractor shall report on sentinel events, as specified in Section 1.9, no
later than 72 hours of the event occurring.

The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on their efforts to conduct third-
party billing for any eligible services and seek alternate sources of funding for
non-billable services, as provided in Sections 2.18.1 and 2.18.2.

4. Benchmarks

4.1.

4.2

4.3.

44,

4.5.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no
later than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the individuals on the waiting list described
in Section 2.9.5 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per
week.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled in program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care.

The Contractor shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite
employment programming to increase in financial stability and reduce
dependence of public assistance.

The Contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
(3) receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1.

5.2

5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of
the services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of thirty (30)
families in New Hampshire.

The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to
the Department for approval no later than sixty (60) days from the contract
effective date.

The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from
the contract effective date,

The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections 2.8.2 and
2.17.1 to the Department no later than sixty (60) days from the contract effective
date.

The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9.5
and 2.9.6 to the Department once every two (2) months.

The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section
2.17.3 to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

i
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5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in
trainings described in Section 2.17.5 to the Department no later than sixty (60)
days after the contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.18.1
to the Department for review and approval no later than thirty (30} days after the
contract effective date.

6. Contract Compliance

6.1, The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.1.1. The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified
by the Department.

6.1.2. The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future
reoccurrence(s) of each deficiency.

6.1.3. The specific action steps and time line for implementing the actions
identified in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above.

6.1.4. A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions identified
in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above are effective.

6.1.5. The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation
and effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials K‘Q
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
in accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalog of Federal and
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Program, Federal Award |dentification Number (FAIN) 18BNHTANF.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10™) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month.

3.2. The Contractor shall have documentation available upon request covering the same
period as the invoice in Section 3.1 that identifies all payments made on behalf of each
client, including the purpose for each payment, the payee for each payment, and any
appropriate backup documentation.

3.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.4. The invoice shall be submitted by mail through the US Postal Services or email to:

Director
Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
Email: Annette.escalante@dhhs.nh.gov
4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days from the Form
P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Any request to adjust a prior invoice must be accompanied by supporting documentation and
is subject to Department approval.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

8. Non Reimbursement for Services

Hope on Haven Hill, fnc, Exhibit B — Amendment #4 Contractor Initials LA@
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8.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client is or may be eligible for an alternative payer for services described in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work including, but not limited to:

8.1.1.  Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for clients who
are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid.

8.1.2.  Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare.
8.1.3.  Services covered by a client's private insurer(s).

8.2. Notwithstanding Section 8.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that is not
covered by the payers listed in Section 8.1.

9. The Contractor shall:

9.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided under this
contract from public and private insurance plans, the clients, and the Department.

9.2. Utilize a billing and payment system that enables expedited processing to the greatest
degree possible in order to not delay a client's admittance into the program and to
immediately refund any overpayments.

9.3. Maintain accurate accounting and records for all services billed, payments received
and overpayments refunded.

10. Submitting Charges for Payment
10.1. The Contractor shall:

10.1.1. Review the invoice and associated backup documentation no later than twenty
{20) days following the fast day of the billing month and submit the invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.1.2. Correct any errors in the invoice and documentation no later than seven (7)
days after being notified of the emors, and submit the corrected invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.,

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review sixty (60) days after the last day
of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

11. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

12. The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to Department funded
programs and services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit B - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials M\\J
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OPEN DOORS = Homelsssness Prevarmion and Suppors for

Low Incorme Pragnant and Perenting Women with Subsiance Use Disorders Contract

Exhibit B-1 - Amendmant 84
SFY 20 Budget

Contractor Hune: Hopa on Hevea Hilt

Budget Requast for: OPEN DOGRS
Budget Period: SFY 20 (July 1, 2013-June 30, 2020}

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

- Total Program Cost - . Contractor Share f Match Funded by DHHS contract share
LEne Itam Dirset Indirect Total Direct - ._Indirect Total Direct
1. Tots! SeteryfVWapes 111.270.00 . $ 112n0m ) $ v $ - $ 111,270.00 3
2. Benefity 31,158.00 B 31,1500 3 - - 31,156.00
3. Conpubanty 15,500.00 - 15 500.00 - - 15, 500.00
4. Equipenent: H S - - - - -
Rental 3 - . - - - -
Repair and Maintensnce ] - - - - - h
ia $ - N . N N N
[ESepotes: - - —Is - 1s 3 -3
Eav 3 1,000.00 . $ 10000 | § - 3 - ] 100000 §
Lab $ - - 3 - L] - - -
$ - 3 - - - - -
Madical 3 - - - - - -
Offica 22500 - ,225.00 - - ,225.00 2
16. Travel 500.00 - ,500.00 - - ,500.00 500
7. _Occupancy B00.00 - D00.00 . . 800.00 300.
8. Cument 3 - - - - - - 3
Teiephone 3 2,000.00 | 3 - 2,000.00 - - 2,000.00 s
Postage 3 - 3 - - - - .
Subscriptions - - - - - S
Audit snd Lagel 3 1,200.00 - 1,200.00 - 1,200.00 3
Insurance 3 1,200.00 - 1.200.00 - - 1,200.00 3
Board Expanses - - . - B [
|9.__Softwers 3 500.00 - 3 500.00 - - $00.00 3
[10. Mlavketing/Communicasons 3 249.00 = 349.00 : = 348,00 3
11. Staf! Education and Training - 3 - . - [
12. Subconyacty/Agreements 3 25,000.00 - 25,000.00 . - 25 000.00 3
13, Other (speciic detaits mendatory) o . N . _ s
Childcans and supports 3 100,000.00 - 13 100,000.00 | § 3 - 3 100,000.00
Rent and Utilites Assistance 3 100,000.00 | 3 - 100,000.00 [ § - F - F} 100.600.00
i 3 50,000.00 50,000-00
e Financial Assistance 5 000.00 5,000.00 5
Food and Fusl Assistsnce 41,500.00 | $ - 41 500.00 | 3 - 3 - 3 41, 500.0C _L
T TOTAL v 500,000,001 31 —_ sy 500,000.001(1 $3 S 1] R 0,000,001 % [iss
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
Hops on Haven Hil
Exhibit B-1 - Amendment 84 Contracior iniéals, k '}
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Qardner, Secretary of State of.ﬂw State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HOPE ON HAVEN HILL
INC. is a New Hampshire Nanprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 25, 2015. 1
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business TD: 735370
Certificate Number: 0004523513

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3rd day of June A.D. 2019,

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
l, mibhae( v Mur‘phj , do hereby certify that:

(Name of elected Officer of the Agency, cannot be a contract signatory.}

1. 1am a duly elected Officer of Ho pe on Haren +U i
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at 2 meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Agency held on LNMJI 23 ; 20 Icf

{Date)

RESOLVED: That the TN T2 LN BLLLLA B DhtdoN

(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute
any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect

asofthe _RX 3% _dayof Q—u‘\j 2019
(date contract signed)

a. ey Nendpm is the duly elected L2 0N By? ot '\/@@"QC‘FOF

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contragt Signatory)

of the agency. L -~
(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Stro.foM d
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 'Lﬁ day of Sﬂ\% , 20 S Es .

sy_Nichae | . Murphy

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agéncy

RULL?

! ""%@w 4-11-2924

W ustice of the Peace




/ﬁ ® DATE {(MMIDD/YYYY}
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

071302019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hotder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. -
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statoment on
this certificato does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTAST  Fairley Kenneally
E & S Insurance Services LLC PHONE o . (603) 203-2781 (AR nop. (803) 203-7188
21 Meadowbrook Lane M Lgg: fairley@esinsurance.net
P O Box 7425 INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gitford NH 032477425 | usupgra: Markel
INSURED \NSURER @ : YVesco Insurance Co 25011
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. INSURER € : N
PO Box 1272 INSURER O :
INSURERE :
Rochester NH 03867 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  19-20 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WAITH RESPECT TC WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS, N
[T ADOLSUBR] POLICY. POL
ey TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER w..m}'#f«ﬁ, ;uum’%fv%l uMITS
>¢| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1,000,000
[ DAMAGE TO RENTED
| camsmaoe [ occur | PREMISES (Eo occumence) | 3 50.000
|| MED EXP (Any one person} s 5.000
A . HUP2419-03 08/01/2018 | 08/01/2020 | prneomar s aoviuury | ¢ 1.000.000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE g 2.000.000
POLICY 1t Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 8 2.000,000
OTHER: Abuse and Molastation s 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY m&mw LiMIT s 1,000,000
| any auTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | 8
OWNED SCHEDULED Y
A TOE ONLY oS HUA2420-03 08/01/2019 | 08/01/2020 | BOOILY INJURY (Per accident} | §
] HIRED NON-OWNED : PROPERTY DAMAGE .
|| AUYOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | {Per pecident)
Uninsured motorist s 1,000,000
| ><] omerewauae | 5] ocoun Ex GaCURREGE | 4 1,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAMS MADE HUU2421-03 08/01/2019 | 08/01/2020 | ,oareaate s 1,000,000
oED | l RETENTION § 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER oTH
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN > Sy | [ 55500
B | Do LCUTIVE NiA WIWC 3426008 08/02/2019 | 08/02/2020 |Ek EACHACCIOENT 3 =550
(Mandatery in NH) E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | $ '
it yes, describe under 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE - POLCY LT [ § .

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS J LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additionst Remarks Schedule, may be attached if mors space is mguired)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
New Hampshire DHHS ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301 ‘%M% kﬂ&\ﬂ\ﬂdﬂb-a_
] i ‘ A

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement
To provide treatment and recovery support for pregnant and postpartum
women with substance use disorder so that they can become healthy,
nurturing and confident mothers and members of their community.

P.0. Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03866 (603) B41-5353 + Fax: (603) 841-5585 www.hopeonhavenhill.org
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
March 29, 2019

To the Board of Directors
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.
Rechester, New Hampshire

We bave gudited the accompanying financial statements of Hope on Haven Hill, Toc. {a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and the related
statements of activities and changes in net assets, finctional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended end the related notes to the financial statements, /

Mansagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that sre free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Onr responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andit. We
conducted our eudit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that weo plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonsble
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An sudit involves performing procedures to obtmin audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in tho financial statements. The procedures sclocted depend on the uditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or emror. In making those rigk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are eppropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
oo such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by manegement, as well ss
evaluating the oversll presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to ahove present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the changes i its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles gencrally
accepted in the United States of America,

MW/W H\ﬂt M-?LLC‘

Certified Public Accountants
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

. CURIMINGS
+ LAMONT
" & WMcNAMEE, PLLC

“Trusted Advisors for

over 50 years!”

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2 Storer Street
.PQ. Box 328

Kennebunk, Maine 04043-0328
TEL 207 985-3339

FAX 207 985-1339

. .O:ne New Hampshire Avenue

Sulte 230
Portsrqouth.-NH 03801
TEL 603 430-6200
FAX 603 430-6209

1 Hampton Road
Sulte 306

Exeter, NH 03833
TEL 603 772-3460
FAX 603 772-7097

htip:/fwww .clmepa.com
e-mail: cim@cimepa.com

Rayenond L. Baldl, CPA, CFE
Cindy K. Edwards, MBA
Wanda J. Ring, CPA

Melanie Bunker, CPA
Michelle Goldsmith, MST, CPA

Member:
American Institute of CPAs

Licensed In Malne, New Hampshire
and Massachuserts



AOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 740,294
Medical billing receivable 55,613
Prepaid expenses 642
Total Current Assets 796,549
7
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Building ' 221,727
Land 39,128
Equipment 3,000
Furniture and fixtures 10,284
Vehicles 29,683
Leesehold improvements 200,935
504,757
Less Accumulated depreciation 15,660
Total Property and Equipment, Net 489,097
OTHER ASSETS
Deposits 6,600
Total Other Assets ' 6,600
Total Assets $ 1,292,246

See Notes to Financlal Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Line of credit

Accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Note payable, net of current portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Totgl Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net nssets

Total Net Assels

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See Notes to Financial Statements
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s 10,631
| 28,999

62,954

. 30,951

133,535

118,860

118,860

252,395

834,351
205,500

1,039,851

$ 1202246




HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVIFIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Donations s 503,919 LY 185,500 689,419
Grants 563,873 25,000 588,873
Insurance reimbursement revenue 497,220 , - 497,220
Pundraising 56,972 - 56,972
Food stamp reimbursement 5,249 - 5,249
Other income 2,919 - 2919
Interest income 241 - 241
Net assets released from restrictions 5,000 (5,000} -
Total Revenue and Other Support 1,635,393 205,500 1,840,893
EXPENSES .
Program Services 870,066 - 870,066
Supporting Services:
Management and general 175,930 - 175,930
Pundraising 139,106 - 139,106
Total Supporting Services 315,036 - 315,036
Total Expenses 1,185,102 - 1,185,102
Changes in Net Asaets . 450,291 205,500 655,791
NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year, as restated 384,060 - 384,060
NET ASSETS, End of Year $ 834,351 % 205,500 1,039,851

See Notes to Financial Statements
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HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Sularies and wages
Professional fees
Payroll taxes

Employee benefits
Direct services
Fundreising

Rent

Repair end maintenance
Utilitics

Advertising

Insurance

Travel

Office expense
Depreciation

Telephone and internet
Dues and subscriptions
Payroll service charges
Equipment rental

Taxes

Meals and entertainment
Bank service charges
Interest expense
Memberships and affiliations
Licenses and permits
Registrations

Qutpatient

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Program Manggement
Services and General Fundraising Total
$ 569834 § 76,701 % 55,183 § 701,718
27,456 50,761 38,901 117,118
50,214 6,206 - 56,420
42,459 5,248 - 47,707
47,013 - - 47,013
- - 41,529 41,529
26,987 10,560 - 37,547
20,744 1,638 - 22,382
14,338 1,033 - 15,371
12,583 - 2,221 14,804
8,187 4,217 - 12,404
10,837 1,339 - t2,176
7,469 3,847 - 11,316
10,934 - - 10,934
7,016 448 - 7,464
3,839 1,978 - 5817
- 5,409 - 5,409
2,993 1,542 - 4,535
3,617 447 - 4,064
1,935 894 - 2,829
1,056 909 - 1,965
387 1,460 - 1,847
- 1,293 - 1,293
- - 1,272 1,272
121 - - 121
47 - - 47
$ 870066 $ 175930 § 139,106 § 1,185,102

See Notes to Financlal Statements

-5-



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC,
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net asscts
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activitios:
Depreciation
Changes In asscts and liabilitics that used (provided) cash:
Medical billing receivable
Grant receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used In) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTTVITIES:

Net proceeds (repayments) on line of credil
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest expense

There was no cash paid during 2018 for taxes on income,

$ 655,791

10,934

39,120
48,568
817
(2,800)
4,764
31,794

788,988

(121,685)

(121,685)

4,000
(7,689)

(3,689)

663,614

76,680

$ 740,294

3 1,847

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment financed with long-term debt

See Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 157,500



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

te I - Sioim i ¢ punting Policles

Nature of Activities - Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (The Organization) was orgenized November 25, 2015, The Organization is a
level 3.5 substance abuse treatment facility serving homeless, pregnant and newly parenting mothers. The Organization was
established to provide a nurturing therapeutic home environment for women with substance abuse disorder who are setking
recovery by providing a safe home with comprehensive addiction treatment services, family therapy, parenting classes,
advance in education and life coaching to support families in their recovery from eddiction.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the nccrual besis of accounting,
and eccordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other Liabilities, 7

Basis of Presentation - Financial statement presentation follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under this
standerd, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

The Organization®s net assets and its revenues and expenses aro classified as temporarily restricted and unrestricted based on
the existence or absence of donot-imposed restrictions. These classifications are defined as follows:

»  Unrestricted net assets are not restricted by donors, or the donor-imposed restrictions have expired.

*  Temporarily restricted net assets contain donor-imposed restrictions that permit the Organization lo use or expend
the donated assets as specified and are satisfied cither by the passédge of time or by sctions of the Organization.

»  Permanently restricted net assets include accumulated donations which require, by donor restriction, that the corpus
be invested in perpetuity end only the income be made available for program operations in accordance with those
restrictions imposed by the donor. There are no permanently restricted net agsets as of June 30, 2018.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted highly
liquid investments which aro readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months or less
when acquired lo be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains cash balances at several banks. From time to time during
the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization’s bank account balances may have exceeded federally insured limits.
Management has cvaluated this risk and considers it to be a normal business risk.

Donated Assets - Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their estimated
fair values at the datc of donation. Donations of inventory items held for resale are recognized when sold because the
Organization does not have an objective measurement for determining fair value.

Donated Services - Donated services are reflected in the financial statements at the fair value of the services received only if
the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial asscts or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals
posscssing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaily nccepted in the United
States of America requires management to make cstimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Actual résults could differ from those estimates, '

Income Tax Status - The Organization is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, donations to the Organization qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(bX1)(A), and the Organization has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section
509(a)2).

The federal informational tax return of the Organization is subject to examination, generally for three years after the returns
are filed.



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

- Summ ¢ ccountl icles (continued,

Grunts and Medical Billing Receivable - Grants and medical billing receivable are stated at the amount management expecls
{o collect from outstanding balances. Management considers accounts receivable to be delinquent based on the date of
unpaid invoices. Management provides for probable uncollectible smounts through a provision for bad debt expenss and an
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are
still outtanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a reduction to accounts receivable. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2018. The
Organization does not require collateral when extending credit.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment is stated at cost, [ess accumulated deprecidtion. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight linc method over the estimated useful Jives of the related assets, which is 5 to 30 years. Normal repairs
and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or retirement of depreciable assets, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts. Any gain or loss on the sale or retirement is recognized in current operations.
Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property
and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stiputations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donsted or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donors. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assels at
that time.

Contributions - Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue when the underlying promises are received by the
Organization. Gifts of cash and other assets are reported as temporarily restricted support if they are received with dogor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction .¢nds or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets and-reported in the Statement of Activities and .Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions.
Temporarily restricted contributions which are both reccived and released within the same year are recorded as en increase in
temporurily restricted net essots and net assets released from restrictions. A portion of the contributions received by the
Organization are temporarily restricted for a specified goographic area. [t is the Organization’s policy to use such funds for
the specifted purpose as soon &s practical and prudent.

Functiona! Allocation of Expenses - The expenses of providing various program and supporting services have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, centain expenses have been ellocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Allocations may be direct or indirect according to the type of expense incurred.
Advertising Costs - The Organization's policy is to expense advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense
totaled $14,804 in 2018

Note 2— Line of Credit

In January 2017 the Organization obtained a line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $24,999. In July 2017
the amount was increased to $50,000. The line bears interest al the Wall Street Joumnal Prime Rate plus 1.50% with 2 floor of
5.25%. The interest rate was 6.50% at June 30, 2018, The linc is sccured by ell personal property of the Organization. Interest
expense paid on the line was $1,460 for the year ended June 30, 2018,



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

te 3 - Note ble

The follewing summarizes the Organization's long-term debt obligations as of June 30, 2018:

Terms

Term loan with the New Hampshire
Health and Education Facilities
Authority. Monthly payments of
principal and intcrest of $2,692. The
loan has a fixed interest rate of 1.00%
and matures in March 2023,

Total Debt

Less: current portion

Security

Building

ry

$ 149811
149,811
30,951

$ 118260

Interest expense under this debt agreement amounted to $387 for the years ended June 30, 2018.

Future minimum principal payments under the agreement are as follows at June 30,:

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Note 4 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

£ 30951
31,262
31,576
31,893

24,129

§ 149811

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Purchase of rehab Jocation

Purchase of rehab location

Note 5 - Related Party

During the year ended June 30, 2018 the Organization leased e residential home from a former executive director, The term
of the lease was for twenty years with a base rent of $2,200 per month increasing 2.5% every five years. The lease included
an option to purchase the property which the Organization exercised in April 2018, Total rent paid under this lease prior to

excrcising the purchase option was $19,800.

£.205.300

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose or time restrictions specified by
donors as follows during the year ending June 30, 2018:



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

ends in February 2019. The |ease calls for monthly payments of $1,600. Total rent peid under this lease was $17,600 for the

yoar ended June 30, 2018. Lease payments due through June 30, 2019 are $12,800. The lease was hot renewed and the
Organization became a tenant-at-wil| in Merch 2019,

¥,
Note 7 - Refirement Plan

The Organization adopted a voluntary 401(k) plan for employees. All full-time employees ere eligible 1o participate in the
plan. The Organization did not make any matching contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Nota 8 - Concentration of Credit Risk

In August 2018 the Organization purchased a rehab location for $280,000. The rehab location was purchased with
temporarily restricted funds and unrestricted funds. There is no debt on the property. .

As a result of internal review the Organization determined that medical billing receivable had not boen entered for the year
ended Junc 30, 2017. The cffect of the restatement on the change in umresttictad net assets and financia) position as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2017 are as follows:

As previously

Reported Restated
Medical billing reccivables $ - $ 99733
Insurance reimbursement revenue $ - $ 9473
Unrestricted net assats $ 289327 % 384,060

-In

i e b e e i e 1 i ety r e s




Board of Directors

As of May 17, 2019

Sarah Landres, Esq. — Chair Joseph Hannon, MD
Public Defender Program 603-292-5852
603-275-0265 Joehannondnh@gmail.com
Sarah.landres@gmail.com Term ending: 12/2020
Term ending: 12/2020
Jillian Mulrooney — Vice Chair Kathleen Routhier, RN
508-269-5706 Wentworth Douglas Hospital
Jillmulrooney33@hotmail.com 603-767-4855
Term ending: 10/2021 rdrouthier@gmail.com
Term ending: 12/2020
Michael Murphy, -Treasurer Colin Walker
Murphy, Powers & Wilson, P.C. Ameriprise Financial Services
603-926-8063 603-767-2992
michael@mpandwcpa.com Colin.walker@ampf.com
Term ending: 12/2020 Term ending: 02/2021
Christine List — Secretary Patte-Anne Ardizzoni
Orr & Reno, PA Southern NH Services
857-753-8827 781-983-0259
Clist127 @gmail.com patteardizzoni@aol.com
Term ending: 02/2022 Term ending: 02/2022
Nick Couturier
603-817-3876
Nick6464@gmail.com
Term ending: 02/2022

P.O. Box 1272, Rochester, NH 03866 (603) 841-5353 - Fax: (603) 841-5585 www.hopeonhavenhiil.org



Kerrylee Norton, RN

’a.-.jl-:-,‘ o, ok

Knorton@hopeonhavenhill.org

Work Experience

Dates Employed
7/1/15-Present Operations Director/Founder
Hope on Haven Hifl, Rochester NH

Co-Founder of emerging Non-Profit Residential treatment facility for Pregnant Women with Substance
Use Disorder. Responsibilities include but not limited to, Filing for 501 c{3), Grant writing, preparing
and testifying for Varlance and Planning Board, Subrmitting appllcation for Leve! 3.5 Inpatient
treatment facllity licensure, Prepare policies and procedures and admission criterta, prepare facility
polictes, Coordinate fundraising and volunteers, Give presentations to local schools, civic agencies,
bhusinesses and NH altles, Advocate for Prevention, Treatment and Recovery services for NH and care
for Men and Women who reach out to us while unable to access care in NH and assist them with
getting support and treatment. After apening supervise and train Recovery support staff. Malntaln
schedule for recovery support for programming schedule of residentlal program. Implement, monitor
and supervise medication management of residentlal programming. Implement, monitor and
supervise urine drug screenings for residential program. Responsible for day to day operations of
residential program.

11/2008-11/13/2015 RN
Garrison Women's Health Center, Dover NH

Triage and Infertility Nurse in Busy OB-GYN office. Responsibllities Include but not limited to triaging
all patlent calls, New Prenatal OB intakes, Essure Procedures, Infertility coverage including call
weekends, Employee Health, OSHA training and compliance for all employees, new hire tralning and
pollcy and protocal implementation.

1/2006-4/2010 RN, CPSN
Atlantic Plastic Surglcal Center, Portsmouth NH

All facets of care for patients undergoing Ambulatory Surgery. Admit patients, Circulate and Scrub
during surgical cases and Recover patients [n PACU. Certified as a Certlfied Plastic Surgical Nurse with
Natlonal Certification In Skin Wellness. Certified to perform Microdermabrasion, Chemical Peels and
Laser Therapy.



5/1994-10/2008 Maternal Chitd Health RN/Resource Nurse

Portsmouth Reglonal Hospital, Portsmouth NH “ypar

All facets of Maternal Health, Including Labor and'l ﬁeli\'rérv, Postpartum Well Baby Nursery, Level 2
Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support, Stbling Class
facliitator, NRP instructor, PALS instructor, Resource/Charge Nurse and Staff orlentation.

1/2002-1/2005 Pedlatric Nurse
Portsmouth Pediatric Assoclates, Portsmouth NH

Weekend coverage for Trlage care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in @ very busy pediatric
practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends | became very competent in all facets of pediatric

care and emergencies.
1/2002-1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator
Harbour Women’s Health, Portsmouth NH

Trlaged all patient medical concerns. Reviewed alt Laboratory reports and followed up with patient
results and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with infertility patlents. Taught and
coordinated all Chitdbirth Education programs.

5/19993-5/1995 Triage Nurse

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage all patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care;.

9/19493-5/1994 Substitute School Nurse

SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse In SAD 60. Worked in all School. Elementary, Middle School and High School.
Past and Present Certlfications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN And STABLE, Maine State Registered Nurse, License compact state.

References upon request



- Gabriella Ei éﬂ[.lava

RELATED EXPERIENCE .
Homeless Center for Strafford County- Rochester, NH . August 2018-Present
Professional Intern/ Case manager
¢ Collect and document client information and ensure clients’ fit into the program
s Participate in G.rant writing, fund development, shelter management, interactions with local welfare officers;
Achieved Annual appeal goal by 20% due to grant writing
¢  Guide conflict resolution between residents and plan individual goals by sharing and discussing available
resources
» Evaluate client information and determine appropriate degree in which the shelter can serve the client
» Participate in collection of housing and saving payments from residents
* Sustain a running record of client information, services provided, and payments completed
* Create a living document using Google Drive for the entire organization to improve communication with staff
» Maintain professional working relationships with area agencies to communicate client applications and

evaluations
*  Worked in ordinance with HCSC protocols, guidelines, and regulations
Seacoast Reads-Durham, NH January 2018 — May 2018

Tutor
¢ Tutor children in kindergarten who are falling behind in reading and writing by encouraging the children to stay
motivated about learning, even when things get challenging
¢ Create a safe and comfortable environment where the children are able to be receptive of the material at hand

Seacoast Volleyball Club- Dover, NH January 2017- May 2017
Head Coach for a 12U team January 2016- May 2016
» Organize and plan practices, develop and maintain relationships with parents, and train young athletes
» Give back to the sport and show young players the balance between working hard and having fun in the sport

LEADERSHIP AND PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

UNH Women’s Volleyball Team, Player & Captain December 2015- Current
Returning Captain- 4-vear scholarship athlete
» Manage communication between Coaching staff and Team
* Plan, organize and develop events that are related to the program- VolleytiHolly, Spread Respect, Team Impact
* Uphold and enforce team rules, listen to needs of team and put thoughts to actions
e Multi-task and time manage
¢ Won two championships and made two NCAA appearances

AWARDS, HONORS, AND ACCOLADES

¢ Ed Jentes Coaches Award : April 27" 2017
¢ Holly Young Most Valuable Player April 14, 2017
¢ America East Commissioner's Honor Roll (3.5+ GPA) September 2017-May 2018

September 2018-current
EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

University of New Hampshire - Durham, NH Expected: May 2019
Bachelor of Science. Social Work

Sexual Harassment Prevention Trained . February 4%, 2019

Narcan Certification November 15®, 2019
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EXPERIENCE

CRSW, Seacoast Mental Health Center, Portsmouth NH 08/2018 -
Present

Assessing the recovery support services and case management needs of the client
while completing SUD case management assessment to provide the most effective
services to meet the client's needs. Providing direct and indirect recovery support
services and case management to the client. Transporting clients to and from
appointments that support their recovery, providing clients with resources necessary
to maintain their sobriety and participating in recovery activities with the clients.

Intake Specialist, Keystone Hall, Nashua NH 0?!2016 - 08/2018

Scheduling clients for admission, completing the admissions process,
communicating with clients to gather necessary documentation, completing phone
screens with incarcerated clients, answering any questions regarding the admission
process and providing referrals for additional treatment options.

Reception, Keystone Hall, Nashua NH 04/2016 - 07/2014

Answering phones and directing calls, monitoring secured door, greeting visitors,
sending applications for treatment, searching clients as they come in, check-in
clients for appointments.

IBM MONITORING TEAM, WORLD WIDE TECH SERVICES, HW
STAFFING, TEWSKBURY, MA 03/2015 - 04/2016



. TR

Monitoring 100+ technician’s departure and arrival times, communications
with vendors and IBM, Telephones, Emails, Microsoft Excel

BACK ROOM PRODUCTION, _SAVERS, NASHUA, NH 7/2013-3/2015
Sorting through donations, pricing merchandise, customer service

HIGH LINER FOODS, PORTSMOUTH, NH 11/2012 - 2/2013
Working on-a fast pace production line in factory setting

CREW MEMBER, WENDYS, LEE, NH — 9/2012--11/2012
Customer service, cashier

CREW MEMBER, SUBWAY, DOVER, NH-- 2/2012--8/2012
Customer service, cashier, food prep, dish washer

CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER, PORTSMOUTH, NH 04/2008--

10/2011

drawer audits, associate scheduling, handling $2,000+ at a time , closing and
opening the store, keeping inventory, ordering inventory, managed 15 +
associates at one time, stocking shelves, customer service.

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University - Candidate for a bachelor’s degree in
Psychology with a concentration in addictions — Anticipated graduation date
February 2020 '

Recoyery Coach Academy - Completed October 2016
CRSW - 2017



SKILLS

Microsoft word, Excel , customer service skills, arganization skills, reception , WITS
Client track , an understanding of substance misuse issues and their impact on
people ,a non-judgmental attitude ,empathy and a calm, caring approach

REFERRALS

References upon request



Carey Johnson
P GRRSRERREREE R Y
Obljective

My goal is to obtain e position where I can use my strong interpersonal skills, ability to multitask, my attention to detail, a
positive attitude, and the opportunity to contribute.

Experience
11/06/2017 - Present Hope on Haven Hill Somersworth, NH

Finance & Organizational Director

e Ensuring time sheets are recorded properly and appropriate payroll processes followed.
o Oversee, review, and adhere to the budgets
e Monitor cash flow, accounts, and other financial transactions

e Create and maintain relationships with service providers and contractors, including banking institutions and
accountants
Update and implement financial policies and procedures
Developing and administering human resources plans and procedures that relate to company personnel.

» Maintains employee benefits programs and informs employees of benefits by studying and assessing benefit needs
and trends; recommending benefit programs to managemeat; directing the processing of benefit claims; obteining and
evaluating benefit contract bids; awarding benefit contracts; designing and conducting educational programs on
benefitprograms. .

o Ensures legal compliance by monitoring and implementing applicable human resource federal and state requirements;
conducting investigations; maintaining records; representing the organization .

e Maintains historical human resource records by designing a filing and retrieval system; keeping past and current
records.

10/06/2015 ~ 10/31/2017 NH Providers Association Concord, NH
Billing & Credentialing Speclalist

o Completes provider credentialing and re-credentialing applications; monitors applications and follows-up as needed.

e Enters information necessary for insurance claims such as patient, insurance ID, diagnosis and treatment codes and
modifiers, and provider information. Insures claim information is complete and accurate.

e Submits insurance claims to clearinghouse or individual insurance companies electronically or via paper CMS-1500
form,

« Follows up with insurance company on unpaid or rejected claims. Resolves issue and re-submits claims.

¢ Tollows HIPAA guidelines in handling patient information.

o Understands managed care authorizations and limits to coverage such as the number of visits.

« May have to verify patient benefits eligibility and coverage.

e Ability to look up ICD diagnosis and CPT treatment codes from online service or using traditional coding references.

¢ Prepare, process and track all billable invoices to clients monthly.

05/20/2015 - 10/01/2015 Pinewood Healthcare/Pain Care Somersworth, NH

Medical Billing Specialist



Post transactions to journals, ledgers and other records.

Communication with vendors regarding payments verbally, electronic, and written.
Receives cash payments and aBRIics credit to customer accounts. .
Communicating Wifh customers by making collection calls and following up on payments.
Follows established procedures for processing receipts and cash, sorts and files documents after posting,

Prepare bank deposits, oversee accounts receivable recordkeeping, ensure cash receipts, claims, or unpaid invoices are
accounted for properly.

01/22/07 - 06/30/13 Garrison City Early Childhood Center Dover, NH

Lead Level Kindergarten/Pre-K Teacher

Knowledge of administrative and clerical procedures and systems such as word processing, managing files and records,
designing forms, and other office procedures and terminology.

Excellent knowledge of group behavior and dynamics, societal trends and influences, human migrations, ethnicity,
cultures and their history and origins.

Proficiency at talking to others to convey information effectively.

Expertise at selecting and using training/instructional methods and procedures appropriate for the situation when
learning or teaching new things in accordance with the State of NH Curriculum Frameworks.

In-depth ability to monitor/assess performance of self and other individuals to make improvements or take corrective
action.

Great ability to use logic and reasoning to identify the strengths and weaknesses of alternative solutions, conclusions or
approaches to problems.

Creating materials to cormunicate with parents end children on a weekly, monthly and quarterly basis.

Knowledge and Skills

Proficiency in numeric keypad and alpha keypad with excellent data entry skills.

Proficiency in operating office equipment of all kinds.

Fast learner with the ability to leam and use new applications and programs

Proficiency in Centricity and other clearinghouse programs.

Proficiency in Microsoft applications, including Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Qutlook

Strong multitasking, accessing multiple data bases and sites at the same time.

Good communication and customer service skills and able to communicate with all levels of the organization, and
external customers,

Ability to work under deadlines and time restraints.

Ability to read, to interpret, and to carry out oral and written instructions, and to write legibly in English.

Ability to plan, to organize, and to prioritize work independently, with team or with supervisory feedback.

An understanding of compliance with HIPAA privacy requirements and confidentiality of information.



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Kerry Norton (Interim) Executive Director | 95,000 10% 9,500

To be Hired Operations Director 30,000 25% 20,000

Gabriella Olhava Case manager 45,000 100% 45,000

Heather Ryder Case manager 40,000 50% 20,000

Carey Johnson Billing 60,000 30% 18,000




~ STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
-129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9474 1-800-862-3345 Ext. 9474
FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh,gov

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Christine M. Tappan

*
Associate Commissione

July 3, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

‘Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services 1o exercise a retroactive renewal
option to the sole source agreement with Hope on Haven Hill, Inc., Vendor #275119-Boo1, 326
Rochester Hill Rd. Rochester, NH 03867, for the provision of substance use disorder treatment
services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders, have income at or below the 185% Federal
Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the price limitation by
$500,000 from $964,238 to $1,464,238 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30,
2018 to June 30, 2019, effective retroactive to June 30 2018, upon Gavernor and Executive Council
approval. 1 QO‘_’@_._Flegi_eral Funds

This agr'e'g‘m*ént was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3,
. 2016 {Late item #A) and amended on April 19, 2017 (ltem #5A) and again on June 21, 2017 (litem
#20A).

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 in the following account with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Oifice, without approval from Governor
and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN; SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

v [owms | e | ety [ g | b T e
2017 soae, Pg{g"’?c"‘;;“’ 45057500 $482,119 0| 482119
2018 Soomn1 pg‘r’;";é‘g;" 45057500 $482,119 $0|  s482119
2019 sooaay | T oymentslo | 45057500 $0 $500,000 | $500,000
Total: | $964,238 $500,000 | $1,464,238
EXPLANATION |

This request is retroactive to June 30, 2018 because the amendment is being submitted after
the release of an audit report to allow the Executive Council to review the audit report prior to renewing
the Agreement, and to add contract monitoring language to address the audit findings. The original
agreement is sole source because the Contractor has been identified as having the ability and
capacity to provide substance use trealment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing
their child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
. Page20f3

The purpose for this request is to allow the Contractor to continue providing substance use
disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at
or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless. The
Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or supportive
housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders and who are
currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use disorders who have
a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely to seek help
. due to concemn that seeking help for a substance use disorder could result in separation from their
children.

The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF program is
to promote the independence of needy families through work and education. The vendor will address
needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the children in residence. The
program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and
addresses an urgent need within our community. The Contractor is providing services that assist
families to reduce and remove barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce
and in the larger community. The services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate
dependence on public assistance, and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while
addressing clients’ substance use disorders.

Y

The vendor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual counseling,
and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will be based on
American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of "Multidimensional
Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for
service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All services are designed to
allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

* Anger management classes |

» Coping skills

s Childbirth education classes

« Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services

¢ Therapeutic pléy

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the service provided by this Contractor. The original
agreement established services for one (1) year, and included the option to renew contract services for
up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor
performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. Amendment #1 exercised one (1)
of the two (2) years of renewal. This request, if approved, exercises the final year of renewal that is
available in the contract.

Should the Governorband Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Greater Manchester area.



His Excellancy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 of 3

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN#16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer avallable. general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submiﬂéd,

Approved by:

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve heaith and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders .

This 3rd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
" Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #37) dated this 27th of June 2018, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, .Depariment of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State® or “"Department’) and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “the
Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a place of business al 326 Rochester Hill Road
Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract®) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item #A) as amended on April 19, 2017 (lfem #5A)
and June 21, 2017 (ltem #20A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3,
the State modlfy the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract and renew
coniract services for up to two (2) additional years, upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the oqntfact completion date, increase the price
limitation, and modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as foliows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.5, Contractor Phone Number, to read:
603-841-5353.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2019. \

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,464,238

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, 1o read:
E. Marla Reinemann, Esq...Dlrector of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9330. .

1

6. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsecnon 2.11, Paragraph 2.11.4, to
read:

Hape on Haven Hill, Inc. Amendmenl #3
$§5-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02 Page 1 0of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
bstance Use ders ' '

2.11.4 Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder
(SUD) records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2
provider, that safeguards, including consent and notices required
by 42 CFR Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

7. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, Contract Compliance, to read:
6. Conlract Compliance ' ‘

6.1 The Contractor shall provide a correclive action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the.date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan includes, at & minimum:

6.1.1 The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified by
the Department.

6.1.2 The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future reoccurrence(s) of
each deficiency. '

6.1.3 The speclfic action steps and time line for Implementing the actions
Identified in Subsections 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 (above).

6.1.4 A wrltten plan for monitoring actions o ensure the actions identified in
6.1.1 and 6.1.2 (above) are effective.

6.1.5 The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation and -
effecliveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

8. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6.
9, Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3, SFY 2019 Budget
10. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Amaendment #3
$5-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02 Paga 2of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substapce Use Disorders

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Depattment of Health and Human Services
gy ?s'o?@/g %Zz /.
rd

Date (/ Christine M, Tappan ¢
Asscciate Commissioner

Contractor Name:

M&géofg‘ - (7)2441;%4@

Name: _2x_azh« I S, flern 7&.':_]56.%/
Title: =, tiya Prracfr—

Date

Acknowledgement: :
State of Irv., County of%&_ on_(p J?—g’l‘l-o{ g , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the pdjson identifled above or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

PAUL G. SAND
Ucs of the Paace - Ni?vsou

e
Expires January 29, 2019

Hope on Haven Hill, nc. A:ﬁandmant #3
55-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02 Pege 3ol 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders :

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution. ‘
OFFICE;OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1lL°!L4> (

Date Name KRy
Tie: %ﬂ =

I hereby centify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Go or and Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Ameandment 43

§8-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-02 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
, Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach” means the loss of control, compromise‘; unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access of potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in section
164,402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. ‘"Computer Security Incident” shali have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information® or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal! Information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Soclal Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or other sensilive and confidential information.

4, “End User’ means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA™ means the Healith Insuréﬁce'PortabiIity and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either falled or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or

- consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last updale 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Conlractor Initia 6
DHHS Information
: Date /ﬁ

Security Reguirements
Page 1 of 9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
- DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. :

7. "Open Wireless Network® means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’'s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,

- PHI or confidential DHHS data. :

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 358-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden

. name, etc. ‘

8. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Heatth
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in fhe
definition of "Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 CF.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. : : } .

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information® means Protected Health Informatlion that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and s
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. .

. RESPONSIBILITIES dF DHHS AND THE CONTFIACTQFI
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4, Last update 04.04.2018 . Exhibit K Conlmctorlniﬁal; 2 % g 2’
DHHS Information

Security Requiremants & g’ (
Page 2 of & Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
' DHHS Information Security Requirements

4

request for disclosure on the basis that it is reguired by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed 1o be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and ‘Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Confractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatlv&s
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

" . METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or poriable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to ltramsmit Confidential
Data,. the secure socket iayers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file

hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit.

Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

-9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to

access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN)} must be

i installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or iaptop from which information will be
. transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protoco!. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 -
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

lll. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIAELE RECORDS

- The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A, Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
.connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to0 ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
" in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
cumrently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Confractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. !

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. :

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY . y

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted setvices.

2. The Contractor will malintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information Ifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/for
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End-
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

8. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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12.

13.

14.

1s.

16.

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach,

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a leve! and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5§ U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (46 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health

"information and as applicable under State law. '

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer 1o Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps:/‘www.nh.gov/doit/'vendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident

-response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer, and

additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidentlal Information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network. :

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in"connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Us_ers:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
- Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.,

b. safeguard this information at all times.

ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, P, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails contalning Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and- being received by email- addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information, -

. —
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). . ‘

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any

.derivative files .containing personally identifiable information; and:in;gll cases,

such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit; at rest” or when
stored on portable media as required in section [V above. ‘

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
.This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, -including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Confractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Securily Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their gccumrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PH! in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 308. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’'s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

Identify Incidents; .
Determine if personally identifiable-information is involved:in incidents;

W o=

Report suspected or confirmed [ncidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

P

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk leve! of Incldents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
P options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

measures. Lo

T i !

Incidents andfor Breaches that implicate P! 'must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange ig_sues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

/
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPAR'I‘MEN'I‘ OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commigsioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-5474 1-800-852-3340 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith - FAX- 603-2714637 TDD Access: 1.800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov
Director .

June 6, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend sole 'source
agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have °
income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming
homeless in Strafford County, by increasing the price limitation by $1,481,326 from
$1,481,326 to $2,962,652 effective. July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is iater, through June 30, 2018. These agreements were originally
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late item A), Septémber.
7, 2016 (item#9), and September 21, 2016 (ltem#11) and were subsequently amended on’
April 19, 2017 (Item#5A). 100% Federa!Funds

Current Increase/ New
Vendor Name Address Vendor # Budget (Decrease) Budget
Greater Nashua '
. 615 Amherst St. 166574- ,
Council on ) $500,000 $500,000 | $1,000,000
Alcohalism Nashua, NH 03063 BOO1 .
.Hope on Haven | 326 Rochester Hill Rd. | 275119-
Hill, Inc. Rochester, NH 03867 |  B001 $482,119 |- $482,119 | $964,238
Famiiies in 122 Market St. 157730- s
Transition | Manchester, NH 03101 | B001 $499,207 | $499,207 | $098,414
Total: | $1,481,326 | $1,481,326 | $2,962,652

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018, upon the availability and continued
apprapriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.
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and the Honorable Exacutive Council
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05.95.45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANGCE, DIV OF FAMILY-ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

. Activity Current Increase/
SFY Class Title Code Budget (Decrease) Ngw Budget
Paymenls to 4 amf
2017 | 502-500891 Providers 45057500 | $1,481,326 $0 $1,481,326
Payments to .
2018 | 502-500891 Providers 45057500 80 $1,481,326 | $1,481,326
) ‘ Total: | $1,481,326 | $9,481,326 | $2,962,652
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this sole source amendment is to increase funding with no char{ge to
the completion date in order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential

and/or supportive housing; and wraparound -services to pregnant and/or parenting women who

are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty
Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless. The original agreements were
sole source because these vendors have been identified as having the ability and capacity to
provide substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the
child(ren) to remam in the mother's care.

The current contracts were extended by Ameridment #1 on April 18,2017 (ltem # 5A)

~ from July 1, 2017 for an additional year to June 30, 2018 with no change to the price limitation -

due to. expected camy-over funding. At this time, the current vendors are expanding their
services to include incieased outpatient services offered in order to support and reach more
clientele. The current scope of the contract allows for various levels of service and durnng the
beginning phases of the contracts, the vendors were beginning with base services with plans
to expand further. This additional fundrng will support this expansion, as well as ailow for Iong

' temn sustainability planmng and |mplementat|on to occur within the agencies.

- The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance -

- use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with

substance use.disorders who have a-child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment.

Utilization pattems and research have shown that women needing housing may. not be
found eligible for more traditiona! rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admlssnon to needing help could

~ result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State, The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain
with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory
purpose of tHe TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be
cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
promote the independence.of needy families through work and education. These vendors will
address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the children
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in reStdence The program being funded by this contract is umque\y ahgned with the purposes
of the' TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The vendors are
providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventlng :
them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to
provide for their families, while addressing pariicipants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remam in the mother’s care. Services may include,
but are not limited to:

« Communication classes

s Anger management classes’

« Coping skills " .

« Childbirth education classes

« Nurturing parentiﬁg classes

« Lactation services

« Therapeutic play

s Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by these vendors. The original
agreements call for the provision of these services for one (1) year, with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory
vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The previous
amendment renewed the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to. the
contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

.Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF
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In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support thls program.

Respectfully submitted,

Terry R. Smith
. Director

Approved by:
J

Commissioner

Pl

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
" in providing opportunities for citizgns to achieve health and independence.



Now Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire '

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment f1.to the OPEN DOORS - Homalassness Pravantion
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Woman
with Substance Uss Disorders Contrac!

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homalessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substanca Use Disorders
Contract {hereinafter raferred to as "Amendmant #27) dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and baiwean he State of New Hampshire, Dopartment of Health and Human Services
“(herelnafter referrad to as the “State® or “Depariment*) and Hope on Haven Hill, inc.
(hereinaftor raferred to as “the Coniracior”), a nonproft company with a place of
business at 326 Rochaster Hill Road, Rochester, NH D3867.

WHEREAS, pursuant ta an agreement (the "Contract®} approved by the Govemor and

' Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late ltem A) and amended by an agreement
gpproved by the Govermnor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (tem#5A), the
Contraclor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the seopa of
“work, payment schedulas and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS pursuznt to General valslons Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parlles and approval of the Govemor and
Executive council; and

WHEREAS, the parlios agree {o increase the prica limitation without extanding the
pletion date; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the forapoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions conlained In the Contracl and sel forth herein, the parties hereto agree to
amend the conlracl as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increasa Price Limitation by 5432 119 from
$482,119 to read: $964,238.
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Slate of New Hampshire
" Department of Health and Human Services

6/1l11

Date ' . Terry Sm
Director

Contractor Name:;

‘Jl i &QAAAJ-\ .
Date : Name:  Ygy1d Tewia
Te:  cpew.: BoAed o._fpm_me

Acknowledgement: i
State of ssPAImal | County of_Smafeed) on . Zﬂihg %, 2007
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified abofe, or

satisfactorily proven 1o be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that sfhe executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

DAVID W. MARTINELL)

CADHHENOE 1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,

substance, and execution.
QFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

WIERY/ VA

Date [ l Refe:l/ 1 - Uj

Title:

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of
meeling)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date - Name:
Title:

CADHHS10021)
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, WH 03301-3857
603-2171-9474 1-800-862-3345 Ext. 9474
" Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDUD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nb.gov
Director

February 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Execunve Council

State Hpuse

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depariment of Health and Human Services 1o exercise a no-cost renawal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for ihe provision of substance use disorder .
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting. women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of -becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Govemor and Executive Council approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally apprcwed by the Governor and
Executive Councit on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (ltem #9) and September 21,
2016 (ltem #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address - Vendar # Current
Budget
.| Greater Nashua Councit on 615 Amherst St. 166574-B001 $500,000

‘ Alcoholism : Nashua, NH 03063 )

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-B001 $482,119
) Rochester, NH 03867 . . .

Families in Transition 122 Market St. 157730-B001 $499,207

' Manchester, NH 03101

Total: | $1,481,326

Funds to.support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-96-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SQCIAL -SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326
Total: .$1,481.326
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing: and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders, have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been
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ldenilﬁed as havnng the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. These amendments
are no additional cost, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicales a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use

_ disorders who have a child may need low of high intensity residential treatment. However, these”

womeén may not seek assistance-due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housmg may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing sernvices due to substance use disorders. Additionally,

women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder i issues are less likely to seek help

due to individual concerns lhat an admission to needing help could result in separation from their
chlldren )

.TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis curently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family.’ The second

- statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promole the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate cate for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducfng and removing barriers that are

- preventing them from fully participating In the workforce and in the larger community, The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ab:hty to pl'OVlde
for their families, while addressing participantis' substance use disorders.

The vendors are provndmg on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health ilinesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment 1o oreate "a_holistic
biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across all services and levels of care. Al services are designed to aliow chfldren to remain in the

mother's care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

+ Communication classes
» Anger management classes
» Coping skills

'« Childbirth education classes
. Nurturing parenting classes

'.- Lac;lalion services
. Therapel.itic play
« Mindfuiness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesnng a
fenewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for.one (1) year, with the option to renew for up to-two (2) additional years, based upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and

o —— o —



His Excellancy, Govemar Chrisiopher T. Sununu
angd the Honorable Executive Council
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Executive Council. This amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, Iea\nng one (1)
addltlonal year of renewal,

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state Iegislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Depariment of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Tempaorary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become na longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

. '-'Terry'ﬁ.ﬂs/ar

Diregor

Approved by:
rey Al Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Missron is to join communities and tamilies
in providing oppartunities for ¢itizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
_Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafler
referred to as “Amendment #1™) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hercinafler referred to as the
"State" or “Department”) and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor”), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contvact”) approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on August 3, 2016 (Late ltem A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in cons1derahon
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
‘payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parhcs and

WHEREAS,; the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement wnhout an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hercto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Conitracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

L.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract 1o the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not-be liable for any
payments for- services provided afler June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CADHHI00212




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Depariment of Health. Human Services

Must 9, 1017 S fF L
Date Terry Smith—
: Director

Contractor Name:

4
1
-

aaLH S AR ' A~
Date Name: vevio Ta-nad
Title: ¢y ygan. - 3oaeD ¢fF D.a.zc:n. 15

Acknowled

State of ﬂﬂwﬂs/a r/"’-County of ) ,"-’Q C\(UYIJ on ) Z{f 20/} 7 ,
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identifiet! above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above. .

“ Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

DAVID W. MARTINELLI
Justica of the Peace = New Hemoshire
My Commission Explres July 24, 2018

Nams ard Tite of Notary or Justics of the Peace



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding A:nend}nent, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

f
M sl}n .
Date | ! -r;lgr;e Niqb/

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:
Title;

CADHHI00213
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
Jeffroy A. Moyora
Cooymisnioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Accesa: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
' Director .
July 25, 2016

Her Excellency, Govermnor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (Vendor # TBD), 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant andfor parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty |evel; and ate homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County
in an amount not to exceed $482,119, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federai Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

- 05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES '

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $482,119
Total: $482,119
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while aliowing the child(ren} to remain in
the mother's care. The Department will request Govemor and Executive Council approval of
the other two (2) agreements once they are received from the vendors.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use disorder treatment services;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to.pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.




Her Excellency, Govermner Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorahle Execulive Councll
~ Page2of3

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming hameless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to thelr fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek heip due to individual ¢concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the"State. When the Hope on Haven Hill program opens its doors it will allow
mothers to remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder.
The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family.- The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work, and education. Hope
on Haven Hill will address those needs of the adutts in their care while assuring appropriate
care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniguely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our
community. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and remaoving
barriers thal are preventing them from fully parlicipating in the workforce and in the larger
community. The services will support families In ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants'
substance use disorders.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
. counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service ptanning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

* Anger management classes

¢ Coping skills

« Childbirth education classes

¢ Nurturing parenting classes

» Lactation services

e Therapeutic play

* Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

This agreement includes language 1o renew contract services for up to two (2) years
subject to satisfactory provision of services, available,funding, and approval of the Governor
and Executive Council. '

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for



Her Excellency, Govemor Marganet Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Councll
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pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age f ive (5) and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Govemnor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or -
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, ‘Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

© E-Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by:
rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Heaith and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (verﬂon 5/8/15)

EQIEE This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for spproval. Any infarmation that is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior 10 signing the contract

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 Statc Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Depasrtment of Health and Human Services [29 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contracior Address
326 Rochester Hill Road
Rochester, NH 03867

1.3 Contractor Name
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8. Brce Limitatj
Number 05-95-45450010-6146 : vﬁ’(}f—
, June 30, 2017 12 $482,119

(603) 834-0766

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number -

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
603-271-9558

Eric D. Bomin, Director

1.12 Namc and Tatlc of Canlmuor Si
ﬂ e-r.‘-d'ﬂ

1.11 Contractor S:gnaturc
el [eres
/7 ofF Hopa m Ha.uehull Bpmd pf Direciors

1.13 Ackn‘Bwledgemem. Statc of N ey sbriy Counly of Nppad¥ ~4

lﬂf <. Te1 b before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
.@ n whosc name is signed in block {.11, and acknowledped that s/he executed this docurment in the capacity

§~‘*‘ 12
gg Ezﬂiﬂomy Public or Justice of the Peace
BT e Bt (o 4
""5; X itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace
K H?QMP \\\*‘ KéiLy Seorr J
'Immumm\\“ L Lo Gos D,
1.15 Narpt and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.14 State Agency ngnamre

—)C—A-y'—g ’7‘ Dm;?}ﬁs’]’w \<“-'\ \F S h)( D\/Q-C {Qf_

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personngl (if applicable)
™

By: - Director, On:

1.17 Approvnl by the Anomcy General Substance and Execution) (i if applicable)
By / 7-?/ ; < ‘o

1.18 Approval by the Got/cmor and Exccutive Councht (i applicabie)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identificd in block 1.1 ("Stalc™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contracter”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideotified and more particularly described in the attoched
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject 1o the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
end Executive Countil approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agrecment is signed by the State Agency as shown in bleck
1.14 (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If'the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, 2ny obligation to pay
" the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement o the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availabitity and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be lieble for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the cvent of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such finds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediataly upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account

to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the cvent funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable,

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
paymeni arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incwred by the Contracior in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Centractor for the Services. The State
shall have oo liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from eny amounts

otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Norwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no cvent shall the tota] of all payments authorized, or actually
madc herennder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS! EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, bist got limited to, civil rights and equa) opportunity
laws, This may include the requirement to wtilize auxiliary
aids and services 1o ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate wilh, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the 1erm of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual oricntation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination,

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monics of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive QOrder No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Depaniment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidclines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
perout the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all cules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
wairants that all personne) engaged in the Services shall be
qualificd to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do 30 under all epplicabic
laws. : .

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for ¢ period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the. Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined ¢ffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee ar official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, admipistration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termibation of this
Agrecment.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be fing! for the State,

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any ont or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall qor;;tiﬁﬁé%fﬁént of default hereunder
‘(“Event of Default™);

" B.1.1 failuré to perfocm the Services satisfectorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any repont required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or al), of the.following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written aotice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Aprecment and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period ftom the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Sute suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 wreat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at Jaw or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTLIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 Asused in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
inforrnation and things developed or abtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developad by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, repors,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, [etters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Swste or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement {or any reason. .

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior writicn approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATTON. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“*Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical 16 those of any Final Report
described in the sttached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employec of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by tbe State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Apgreement without the prior wrirten notice and
consent of the State, None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prier written
notice and consent of the Stote.

13. INDEMNIFTCATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and ‘
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and eny and all claims,
liabilities or penaltics asserted against the State, its officers
and employces, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arisc out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
comained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immuaity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or

_ assignee 10 obtain and maintain in force, the following

insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than §1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.) berein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

| 1
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contrector shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all reocwal(s)-of insurance requircd under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the Insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or cxempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA cbepter 281-A
(" Workers' Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Qfficer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workets® Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiuras or for any other claim or benefit for Contracter, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH, No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hercof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed 8 waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Defaull. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provigions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any nofice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postege prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by en instrument in writing slgned
by the partics hereto and only after approval of such
amendmeat, waiver or discharpe by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
taws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the partics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutyal
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applicd agamst or
in favor of any party.

20. THTRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21, HEADINGS, Thg headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, ampliy or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Additional provisibns sct
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agrcement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

. provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and

effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the panties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings refating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Pamnting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.

Hoge on Haven Hil, ing. Exhibit A Contractor h'\n;:_h
$5.2017-DF A-02-Opend-02

Scope of Services

"

Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extert future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federalty
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include;

1.2:1. Food, clothing, shelter {rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family,

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four rnbnths for an individual family
uniess the parent is employed in which case services can be extended:;

1.2,3, Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.24. Non-medical services not covered by Medicald or private health insurance
- such as dental services, auto registration, personal care, and books and
tuition subject to department approval.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential '

and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who: .

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2.  Have Income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are_homelpss. or at risk of becoming homeless. .

The Contractor shall kesp record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand cument services, provide new beds, or Increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.
The Contractor shall work, in partnership with DHHS to review/assist the

development of program pracesses, service provision, and overall program -

- oulcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DHHS to ensure desired

program benchmarks are achieved timely.

The Contractor shall comply wnh all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

Page 10f9 Data
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services -
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A ,

1.9
1.10.

18.1. Requirements goveming human subject’s research when considenng -
research, including research conducted by student intems, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. Tha
Department reservas the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event Reporting.

The Coniractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and -
client contact within three {3) days following the activity or contact. The Contracl
shall; .

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening’ . ‘
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
. 1.10.1.3. Admission
"~ "1116°1 4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenrollment
1.10.1.8. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions. '

2, Scope of Services

21.

22.

23.

N,
Hope on Havan HIl, Inc. Exhibil A Contractor In2iais mfi &

55-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02

The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access {0 services that include, but are not timited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD} Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services.

2.1.3. OQutpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stab#lization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff lo oversee trealment.

2.1.5. Access o on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.
2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services. ‘

2.1.8. Case management services.

The Contraclor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's

Page 2of 9 Date ILQ_;.HQ



- New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS — Home!essness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Exhibit A

ability to provide for their famities; and address pregnant and parenting women's
substance use disorders.

2.4, The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
avaitable to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:.

24.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongaing public service announcements {radioftelevision).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in localiregional print media.
2.4.4, Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notfication of avallability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and-their children) dtstnbuted to
the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.-
2.4.5.2. "Health care providers.

- 2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.
2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initia intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Stalistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Compelencies, avaitable at
http://store.samhsa.goviproduct/TAP-21-Addiction-

2.5.3. Case assessments.

26. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed “clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facllity pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. - Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the aballu to provide onsite substance use disorder treatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apartmems wnhin an
"apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing. .o

2.6.3. Qutpatient SUD Treatment Services with Houslng Stabitization Sennces that;q
allow clierts to remain In their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD"
treatment services.

Hope on Haven Hil, Inc. Exhibit A Controctor Inittals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Usa Disorders

Exhibit A

2.7, The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after

being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:
N

2.7.1. Housing. )
2.7.2. Food.
2.7.3. Clothing.
2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

28. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children, who are under the age of
5 or not yet efigible for public school enroliment, into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure: .

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed-at reducing the risk_of Sudden
: Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2, Written policies are developed that describe the praclices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http:/icfoc.nrckids.org/StandardViews3.1.4.1 - and
hhp:ﬂpedialﬁcs.aappublipalions.orglconlentipediatrimn 28/5/e1341 full.pdf .

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare shall be available 1o children, either
through on-site care or through amangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. it is not expected the on-site facility be licensed ‘but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare. .

2.9. The Contractor shall provide inlerim services or provide referrals to services, when
no appropriate services are immediately available while managing a waiting list. The
Contractor shall:

29.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes avallable, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery supporl services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
i effects of aicohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the

fetus for pregnant woman. ' :
2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the dlient if an emergent need arises, to assess and
respond. '
Hope on Haven HE, Inc, Exhibit A Contractor Initials 1,1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders-

Exhibit A -

2.10.

2.11.

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepamls C, (HepC) and
Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.8.2.1. Therisks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. The risks of fransmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.23. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services, if hecesary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
29.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier,
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services,
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the wailing list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessat:on tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited 1o the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP} and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors avatlable through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as the sole reason for discharging clients
from services being provided under this contract.

The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

211.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whuchever Is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

2.11.3. Ensure treatmeni plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but are not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she wili
be permanentty housed after recelving treatment services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A
§5-2017-DFA-02-0pend-02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enroliment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7, Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes. '

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Managemen! for Substance Abuse Treatment -
(http:/fstore.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215)  and the  ASAM guidetines
(http:/Mww.asam.org/publicationsAhe-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling )

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered f:y providers working
within their scope of praclice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for ciient and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfil the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this Contract, which shall include, but is not limited to, behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice, In accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facllity
Rules, Part He-P 807 Rules for Residenfial Treaiment and Rehabilitation. These
should include, but are not limited to:

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC).
2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor m;:_mfl./
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Exhibit A

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs andfor ILADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
. unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support servicas must attain -
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.6. One (1) directar/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist in order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of social determinants of health and other public health and community
nealth indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCVHIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall: , - ‘

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and .

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.
2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ansure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.2. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2.Infection control and universal precautions, Induding use of
protective clothing and devices

/

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.2. 4_Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

~ 2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.
2.17.3. Ensuring altemative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.4. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situatlons
: through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

217.4.1. Ad_ult and infant Cardioputmonary Resuscitation (CPR)
2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxone. .
2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.4.4. Universal precautions (for what?) _/]
Hope on Haven Hil, Inc. Exhibit A ’ Contractor Initals "Lt t
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2.18. The Contractor shall ensure services In this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shall: .

2.18.1. Provide delailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termmination of the contract period.

2.19. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no fater than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompllance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement mdudmg but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

2,20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the comective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
‘ Contraclor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that inctude, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Bnef narrative idenlifying barmiers experienced when providing services In
the previous month. .

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services In this contract are operalional no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall attempt to contacl 85% of the lndmduals on the waiting list
described in Section 2.4.3. at least one time per month.

5, Deliverables

5.1. The Conlractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are avallable to a minimum of 8 families in the New
Hampshire region.

5.2. The Contractor shall begin outreach activities to publicize contract services no later
than 90 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

54. The Contractor shall provide written polices identified in Section 2.3.2 to the
Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.4.3 to
the Department every 60 days.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.10.3 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

Hopa on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhbbit A Contructor Inlme
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5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings

described in Seclion 2.10.5 to the Departmen! no later than 60 days after the
contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Sectlon 2.13 to the
Department no later than December 30, 2016.

Hope on Haven Hil, Inc. Exhibit A Contracior Indiats
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Siate shall pay the Coniractor an amount not o exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, In
accardance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Asslslance (CFDA} # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Asslstance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assislance for Needy Families Program. ‘

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorlzed expenses Incurred in the pricr month. The State
shall make paymeni to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of recelpt of each invoice for
Conlractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice musl be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Afinal payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor egrees that funding under this
Contract may be. withheld, in whole or in par, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the sald services have not
been completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation Is reached, the program shall continue fo operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract perlod.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
wrilten agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and

Executive Council.
~
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibht B Contractor Initials
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.Elhibl! B-1 Budget

LA, .
Open Doors to provide 50% of sarvices for the year for RESIDENTIAL FACILITY, ramalntng §0% to bs mads In matching funds with fundraisers, donations, blitng for direct -
sarvicas. Ouipatisnt services to bagin within 6 menihs cf contract. 100% of servbes assigned Open Doors howaver billilng System will be instilued to bill lor services covered
by medicaid along with nominal fzes lor ancillary services provided. .

Expanses: S 2046-2017
A._Personpel. &
1. TOTAL SALARIES/WAGES:
Direct Program Staff: . :
HHH Program Director- (40.00 hrs/wk x $31.25 per hr x 52 wks) 3 £5,00000 $ 32,500.00
HHH Clincial Director-MLADC, LCISW (40.00 hrsiwk x $31.25 par hr x 52 wks) s £5,000.00 $ 32,500.00
HHH MLDAC- (32.00 hrs/wk x $28.00 per hr x 52 wks) $ 46,592.00 § 23,296.00
HHH Case Manager- (20.00 hrsiwk x $16.71 per hr x 52 wks) $ 34,756.80 § 17.378.40
HHH 3 Overnight Staff- (48.00 hrsiwk x $15.40 per hr x 52 wks)  (20.00 hrsiwk x
$14.98 per hr x 52 wks) (40.00 hrsiwk x $15.40 per hr x 52 wks) $ B5,04060 § 43,024,80
Total Direct Program Staff $ 297,39840 § 148,699.20
Managoment Staff: .
HHH ED- (20.00 hrs/wk x $31.25 per hr x 52 wks) $ 32,500.00 § 16,250.00
HHH Admin Assist- (40.00 hrsiwk x $14.40 par hr x 52 wks) $ 2895200 § 14,976.00
HHH Billing/Coder- (20.00 hrsiwk x $18.50 per hr x 52 wks) s 10,240.00. § 9,620.00
Total Management Staff l . $ 81,692.00 § | 40,848.00
Total Direct Staff + Management Staff . : $ 379,08040 § 1689,545.20
TOTAL: SALARYWAGES (A) - ©$  379.08040 § 189,545.20 -
2. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
Health, Dental, Life, STD FICA, Unemployment, Workers Compensation = 28% of b $ 10614531 §. 53,072.85
TOTAL: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (B) - $ 106,44531 § 53,072.66
TOTAL PERSONNEL (A + B) o $/ 48523571 $ 242,817.85
3. CONSULTANTS: i :
Development of Infrastructure ] .8 20,000.00 10,000
Total Consultant ' s 20,00000

. T Contractor him
Hope on Haven HIl, Ine. : - - -
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Exhiblt B-1 Budget

4, EQUIPMENT: , . :
- Calt phone $400 x4, 5 agency laptops x 700, . $ - 510000 §$ 2,550.00
Total Equipment ] $ $,100.00 § 2,550.00
5. SUPPLIES:
General Office Supplies . $ 500000 $ 2,500.00
Education Supplies families s 1,000.00 $ 500.00
Total Supplles ) o ' S 600000 § 3,000.00
8. TRAVEL: )
- Staff Trave! Relmbursement (3,50 per mile x 40 mllesfweek x 3 staff x 52 weeks) s 3,12000 $ 1,560.00
Tota) Travel ' s 312000 § 1,560.00

7. OCCUPANCY:

facilities lease based on faic market rate $14.00 triple net $ 3164000 $ 15,820.00
snow and lawn care ) 4,00000 § 2,000.00
repairs and maintenance $ 500000 $ 2,500.00
Ultilitims § 6,880.00 $ 3.440.00
Total Occupancy $ 4752000 $ 23,760.00__
8. CURRENT EXPENSES:
+ Telephone ($200/month cell 55 x4 x 12 3 504000 § 2,520.00
background check $ 1,150.00 § §75.00
- Postage $ 1,000.00 § 500.00
+ Subscriptions; $ 50000 § 250.00
- Payroll s 3,50000 $ 1,750.00
+ Audit and Legal S 10,000.00 § 5,000.00
Meals without USDA relmbursement $3/meal/day/aduit $ 2628000 $ 13,140,00
cleaning and laundry supplies s 200000 $ 1.000.00
Chlld Care $ 20,00000 $ 10,000.00
Transportation ’ s 10,00000 $ 5,000.00
Nonmeadical Services not covered by medicald . $ 20,000.00 § 10,000.00
- Insurance includes Malpractice, General Liabillly and Property Insurance, state license fee, auto insur. § 9,780.00 $ 4,850.00
Total Currant Expenses ' $ 10925000 § 54,625.00

Contractor InlﬁnlM
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Exhibit B-{ Budget

9. Software:

3 2,00000 $ 1.000.0C
Total Software $ 2,000.00. § 1,000.00
10. Marketing / Communications
- Flyers, Brochures, PSA's, Website, business cards $ 2.50000 $ 1,250.00
Total Marketing/Communlcations [3 2,500.00 S 1,250.00
11. STAFF EDUCATION/TRAINING: .
+ Professional Development s 4,25000 $ 2,125.00
Total Staff Education/Training T 42000 § 212500
12. SUBCONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS:
Total Subcontracts/Agreaments $ -
<
13. OTHER: )
Funds for translation services for families requiring this service s 1,000.00 § 500.00
Total Other ‘ 3 100000 $ 500.00
14. Qutpatient Staff for waltlist/iransitioning residents -
Staff MLADC ; 32 hriwk x $28 per hr x 52 wk $46,592.00
Substance Use Disorder Counselor; 32 hriwk x $15.51 per hr x 52 wk $25.975.04
- Case Manager 0.5 FTE: 20 hriwk x $16.71 per hr x 52 wk $17.378.40
Total Outpatient staff $69,045,44
15. Total Banefits OutpatoInt Staff: as abave 28% salary $25,104.72
16, Current Expenses as above: 25% for Outpatient services $27,312.50
17. Qutpatient Lease Space
Total $24,000.00
X L TR S - 18 . -685.97571] - - "$e82,118.01]

Haopa on Haven HII, Inc,
58-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02
Jofd
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Exhibit 8-1 Budget
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REVENUE

NH Msdicald pregnant woman/day $182.60 avg stay 180 days x 4 woman $ wr07200

NH Madicald warman and chilkikiny $228.00 svg stay 180 days x 4 woman $  154,160.00

Sell Pay $550/ day avg stay-180 days x 1 women

Donations - S 10,000.00

Development Based on 2015-2016 figures - .
Opan Housa $ 8,500.00
Goft Tournament $ 30,000.00
Pancake Breaifast s 1,000.00
Fall Gala $ 10,000.00
Twice tha Fun $ 5,000.00

TOTAL 3

343,732.00

Conlractor lnmam L_J l
Hopa on Hawven HIl, Inc. ’
55-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02 _ f) } 2 2 { }
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Qbligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment lo the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

v

Compllance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Depariment for that purpase and shall be made and remade at such limes as are prescribed by
the Depariment.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
informalion necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinatliohs that the Department may requesi or require.

Fair Hearings: The Conlractor understands that al) applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to filh out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractar, any Sub-Contractar or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detalled in Exhibit A of this
Contracl. The State may lerminate this Contract and any sub-contract-or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contalned in the Contract or in any
other document, conlract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parlles
hereto, that no payments will be made-hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services pravided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services ar (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditlons of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing |

herein contained shail be deamed to obligate ar require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contraciors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary 1o assure the quality of such service, arat a
rale which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to inefigible individuals or other third party
funders for such sesvice. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after recelpt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used

" payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment

in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals

_ ar other third party funders, the Department may elect lo:

7.1. Renegoatiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In
excess of cosls;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor :niﬁam g
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department o the Contractor for services
provided 10 any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenanlts and agrees {0 mainiain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or coflected by the Contractor during the Contract Periad, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to inciude, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. ' o

8.2. Statistical Records: Slatistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each reciplent of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibitity (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services. : )

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. Itis recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organizations® and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. _

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and.the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Heaith and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatlives shall have access 10 all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Llabliities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood end agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held iiable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officlals requiring such informalion in connection with their officlal duties and for purposes
direclly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wiitten consent of the reclpient, his
aftomey or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Confractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financia) Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
al! costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfeclory by the Department to
|ustify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reporis shall be submitted on the form
:daesignated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitied within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contracl. The Final Report shall be in a farm satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and ather information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units pravided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Cantract and all the cbligatians of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Depariment shall disallow any expenses ctaimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or lo recover such sums from the Cantractor.

13. Credits: All documents, natices, press releases, research reporls and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
slatement:

13.1. The preparation of this (repart, document elc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services.

14, Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have priar approval frorn DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DPHHS wlll retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials preduced under the contract withaut
prior written approval from DHHS. .

15. Operatlon of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant o laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Confractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and

" conditions of each such license or permil. In connectian with the foregaing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall bs in conformance with local building and 2aning codes, by-
laws and regulations. '

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will pravide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEQP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (CCRY), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 ar mors and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form 1o the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For reciplents receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient wil provide an -
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submil or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to daim the exemption.
EEQP Certification Forms are available at: hitp/Awww.ojp.usdojlabout/ocr/pdfsicert pdf.

17. Limited English Proficlency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, impraving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1958 and Titte VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHIQTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedles in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.5.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 {(Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S5.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold. .

18. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or conveniencs,
but the Contractor shall retain the respensibllity and accountability for the function{s). Prior to '
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function{s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies actlvities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractors performance is not adequate. Subcantractors are subject to the same conlractual
conditlons as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcantractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate lhe prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanclions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Spacial Provisions Contractor inttials
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194. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, deiegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subconlractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracis.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective aclion.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the followmg meanlngs

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expen;sa determined by the Department to be
allowable and relmbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Serwces

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean Lhat seclion of the Contraclor Manua! which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations goveming the financial
activities of contractor agencles which have contracted wilh the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: Il applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contmctor on a form or forms
required by the Depariment and contalning a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service thal the Contracior is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of ime or that specﬂ' ed aclivity determined by the Dapartmenl and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever faderal or state lJaws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contracl, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, efc. as
they may be' amended or revised from the time to time. .

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS = .

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract Cond:tional Nature of Agreement, Is
replaced as follows:

4,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or in parn,
under this Agreemen! are conlingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any stale or federal legislative or exacutive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in parl in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available furxds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or medification of appropriated or avallable funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) Identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavaliable,

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, Is amended by adding the
following language; .

101

10.2

10.3

10.4

©10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising ils
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, ihe Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but no! limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
recelving services under the Agreement and eslablishes a progess to meet those needs,

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transltion Pilan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revislons of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving

services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity

including contracted providers ot the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the propesed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

a. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two {2) additional years, subject
to the continued availabllity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Govemor and Executive Council.

CUDIHAN 10713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provislons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees 1o have the Contractors representative, as idenlified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This cerilication is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |1 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-216531), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contraclors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 30117.630(c) of the
regutation provides that a grantee {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors} that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federat fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below s a
material representation of fact upon which rellance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspenslon or debarment. Conltractars using this form should
send it to:

Commissionar

NH Depariment of Health and Human Services
123 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a conlrolled substance is prohibited in the grantee's .
workplace and specifying the'actions that will be taken against employess for violation of such

- prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining e drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, end employee assislance programs; and

1.24. The penalhes that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse viclations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each empioyee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph {a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a} that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. - Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notlfy the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Nolifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after recalving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position titte, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant; .
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking eppropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabifitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Maklng a good falth effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2 The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performanca of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (fist each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

)23 ik MMAEH&MMM.\(P‘M%
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31U.5.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Ganeral Provisions execute the following Cerlification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
“Temporary Assistance to Needy Familias under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title Iv-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicald Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title V1

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Tille IV

\

The undersigned certifles, to the best of his or her knowledge and belie!, that:

1. No Federa! appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federa] contract,.grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). . ’

2. M any tunds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be pald to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, atached and identifled as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language-of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at afl tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperalive agreements) and that sll sub-recipients shall cenify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entared into. Submission of this cedlification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required ’
certification shall be subject to a civil penaity of nat less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure.

Contractor Name:

. ’\!’,}}Il(p M%lﬂja_tmmi_cmw‘ on
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS -

The Contracter identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibllity Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.19 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this propasai (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denia!
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary,.the prospective participant shall submit an
-explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The cerification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Servicas' (DHHS) )
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a cerification or an exptanation shall disqualify such person from pariicipation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause [s a materia) representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later delermined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an eroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may lermlnate this transaction for cause or defaull

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the' DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary parlicipant leams
that its certification was emmoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered lransaction,” "debarmed,” “suspended,” 'inaligible,' “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and .
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitling this proposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or valuntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorzed by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled *Cartification Regarding Debarment, Suspenslon, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tler Covered Transaclions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
ransactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a cerfification of a prospective parliclpantin a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debamed, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is ermoneous. A participant may
decide the method and fraquency by which it delermines the eligibility of its principals. Each
pariicipant may, but is not required to, check tha Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the cerlification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhiblt F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Conh'ador Initials
And Other Responsibliity Matters (\ 95 “
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is nat required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 8 of these instructions, if a participantin a
- covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower fier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Faderal govemment DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The praspective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared insligibie, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered agalinst them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtatning, altempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaclion or a contract under a public fransaction; violation of Federa) or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; . :
11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmantal entity
(Federal, State or local) with commtssnon of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l){b)
of this certification; and
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicallonvproposal had one or more public
transactions {Federa!, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unabile to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this propasal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower lier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, cerilfies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarmred, suspended proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarly excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal depariment or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it will
includa this clause entifled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

N2\ (

Date Name; ~ :
Name: thoonel of Divec (S
Kope an Hawen H\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
DERALNOND!SC IMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF -BASED QRGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBL OWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in 'Secﬁon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
reciplents of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the bas!s of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipienis fo produce an Equai Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 1U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights cbligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of sarvices or
benefils, on the basis of race, color, religion, natlonal ongln and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employrment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financiel
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.5.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financlal
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefils, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabiliies Act of 1990 {42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discnmination and ensires equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govemment services, public accommodauons commercial facilities, and transporiation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections §106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or aclivilies receiving Federe! financial assistance. It does no! include
employrnent discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Departmen? of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
{U.S. Department of Justice Regutations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Polictes
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulfations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.5.C. §4712 and The National Delense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub, L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program lor
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which relisnce is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violalion of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G TN
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federa! or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religlion, national origin, or sex
agalnst a reciplent of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, end
to the Deparimerit of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representalive as identified in Secticns 1.11 and 1.12 of tha General Provisions, to executs the follomng
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agreas to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

- g}z;}\ne Wvedifn Houmad, Clhornperson
Date Neme: Pord gf Dic Qd'WS
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New Harr{pshlre Department of Health and Human Services
. Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL YOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Enviranmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portlon of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federa! programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used far inpatient drug or alcohol reatment. Feilure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civi monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible, entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of Lthe General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts 1o comnply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

/ Mereditin Hame | Chatrpersn
Da rome: ook of Directers,
. on Howen hill
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit]

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT -

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees o
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontraclors and agents of the Contractor that
recelve, use or have access to protected health information.under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

_b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Reguiations.

¢. “Covered Entity* has the meaning given such temn in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations,

d. "Designated Record Set”shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. .

e. "Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation® in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f ‘Héélm Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 456 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXl), Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law '
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “*Individual” shall have the same meanif\g as the term *individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

). “Prvacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually !dentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information™ shail have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information crealed or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

2014 . Exhibit | Contractor Inftials
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New Hampsttire Dapartment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

()

“Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Depanment of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information™ means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American Nationa) Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R, Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH -

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to alt
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a vioiation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Assoclate may use or disclose PHI:
Il For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
R As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For datla aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prier to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI wilt be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI to the extent it has oblained
knowledge of such breach. ,

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects 1o such disclosure, the Business

32014 Exhibit | Contracior wumM
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

a. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assoclate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

i

3) O'bllgations and Activities of Business Associate.

a, The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Buslness Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement inctuding breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impacton the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

"o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;
o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the:
disclosure was made;
o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected bealth information has been
mitigated.
The Business Assoclate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply wlfh alt sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its intemal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disciosure of PHI recelved from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
reslirictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PH contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Conlractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receivin? PHI !

204 Exhibit | .Contractor Inttials
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Exhibit}

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govermned by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. - Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make avallable during nommal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement,

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrilten request from-Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524,

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHi avallable to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. .

j- within ten {10) business days of recelving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Assoclate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

A Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PH! to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busin
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall cerlify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

4 Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall nolify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
. Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s '
use or disclosure of PHI,

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Assoclate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Assoclate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entiiy shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assoclate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

in addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this .
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Assoclate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opporiunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termmatlon nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall repori the
violation to the Secretary.

J

(6)  Miscellaneous
a. ~ Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended lo inctude this Exhibit ], to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federa! and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect o the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Intemretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ’ (
5
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
termns and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHi, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

[N

IN WITNESS WHEREGOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit L.

DHHS
The State Name of the Corrtracto;
P G

Signature of Authorized Representative

" —_f‘
KXo S o

Name of Adthorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
e tor— ‘A - £ Dicectors
Tite of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Vet 01221t
Date ' Date

014 Exhibit t ] Contractor Inmm

Health Insurance Portablity Act .
Businoss Asscdlate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA} requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to execulive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporling Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Depariment of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or coniract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Nams of entity
Amount of awarg
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts f CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpese of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
i0.2. Compensation information is not already avaitable through reporting to the SEC.

20PNPNAWN

=]

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made

The Contractor identified in Secllon 1.3 6f the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Infarmation), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to compily with a!l applicable provisions of the Federal
Financia! Accountability and Transparency Act.

2l Mavediin Hamel

N_ame: Rz gt é 0/10(
e c/%ws Hope o Hawen Ril|

Exhibit J - Cartification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initals
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Campliance
CUDMASIOT Page10ol2 Dats l (‘p



‘New Hampshire Departmont of Heauﬁ and Human Services, A
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provislons, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: W?

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
recelve {1) 80 percent ar more of your annual gross revenue tn U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and (2) 25,000,000 or more in annuat
gross revenues from U.S. federa! conlracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements? _

_X __NO - YEs
If the answer lo #2 above is NO, stop here
It the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access o Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed undar gection 13({a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.8.C.78m{a). TBo{d)) or section 6104 of the Intemnal Revenue Code of
19867

NG ____ ___YES
If the answer lo #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answartd #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as {oliows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name; Amount;
Exhibit J - Cerlification Regarding the Federa! Fund'u-;Q Contractor Initlals

Accountabiity And Tra rency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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